

Taking pride in our communities and town

Date of issue: 26th August, 2014

MEETINGPLANNING COMMITTEE
(Councillors Dar (Chair), Ajaib, Bains, M Holledge,
Plenty, Rasib, Sidhu, Smith and Swindlehurst)DATE AND TIME:WEDNESDAY, 3RD SEPTEMBER, 2014 AT 6.30PMVENUE:FLEXI HALL, THE CENTRE, FARNHAM ROAD,
SLOUGH, SL1 4UTDEMOCRATIC SERVICES
OFFICER:
(for all enquiries)TERESA CLARK
01753 875018

NOTICE OF MEETING

You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal with the business set out in the following agenda.

Q55-

RUTH BAGLEY Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART 1

AGENDA ITEM

REPORT TITLE

PAGE WARD

1. Apologies for Absence

CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS

2. Declarations of Interest



REPORT TITLE



PAGE

WARD

All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest and, having regard to the circumstances described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the Councillors' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.

The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have a declarable interest.

All Members making a declaration will be required to complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form detailing the nature of their interest.

- 3. Guidance on Predetermination/Predisposition To 1 2 Note
- 4. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 24th July, 3 8 2014
- 5. Human Rights Act Statement To Note 9 10

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

6. P/07830/016 - Lynch Hill Primary School, Garrard 11 - 20 Britwell and Road, Slough, SL2 2HX Northborough

Officer Recommendation: Delegate to the Acting Planning Manager

7. P/00440/008 - Slough Estates Plc, 234 Bath 21 - 58 Cippenham Road, Slough, SL1 4EE Green

Officer Recommendation: Delegate to the Acting Planning Manager

8. P/01766/022 - 172-184, Bath Road, Slough, SL1 59 - 66 Cippenham 3XE Meadows

Officer Recommendation: Delegate to the Acting Planning Manager

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

- 9. Members Attendance Record 2014/15 67 68
- 10. Date of Next Meeting

Thursday 16th October, 2014





REPORT TITLE

PAGE

WARD

Press and Public

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details.

The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public. Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the start of the meeting. Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting. The use of flash photography, additional lighting or any non hand held devices, including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been discussed with the Democratic Services Officer.



This page is intentionally left blank

PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION - GUIDANCE

The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and this can place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent the interests of their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also a well established legal principle that members who make these decisions must not be biased nor must they have pre-determined the outcome of the decision. This is especially so in "quasi judicial" decisions in planning and licensing committees. This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members may participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct.

Predisposition

Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and may have expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will include political views and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member retains an "open mind".

Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination "just because" a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done something more than indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or predetermination so it is important that advice is sought where this may be the case.

Pre-determination / Bias

Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. Predetermination means having a "closed mind". In other words, a member has made his/her mind up on a decision before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence. Bias can also arise from a member's relationships or interests, as well as their state of mind. The Code of Conduct's requirement to declare interests and withdraw from meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not deciding your own planning application. However, members may also consider that a "non-pecuniary interest" under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The legal test is: "whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased'. A fair minded observer takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think that they have a relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek advice.

This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. Members who need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring Officer. This page is intentionally left blank

Planning Committee – Meeting held on Thursday, 24th July, 2014.

Present:- Councillors Dar (Chair), Ajaib (Vice-Chair), Bains, M Holledge, Plenty, Rasib, Sidhu (until 8.27 pm), Smith and Swindlehurst (from 6.35 pm)

Also present under Rule 30:- Councillor Hussain

Apologies for Absence:- None

PART I

12. Apologies for Absence

None received.

13. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Dar declared a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of Agenda Item 6 - P/06348/008 - Lion House: Depot & No. 10, Petersfield Avenue, Slough, in that the applicant was known to him personally. Councillor Dar advised that he would take no part in the decision making process and would leave the meeting during consideration of that item.

Councillor Rasib declared an interest in respect of Agenda Item 6 – P/06348/008 – Lion House: Depot & No. 10, Petersfield Avenue, Slough, in that he was part of the Planning Committee that approved the original application. Councillor Rasib advised that he would approach the item with an open mind, would take part in the debate and vote on the item.

Councillor Ajaib declared an interest in Agenda Item 6 - P/06348/008 - LionHouse: Depot & No. 10, Petersfield Avenue, Slough, in that he was the Ward Councillor for the application. Councillor Ajaib advised that he would approach the item with an open mind, would take part in the debate and vote on the item.

Councillors Ajaib, Dar, Holledge, Plenty, Rasib, Sidhu and Swindlehurst declared an interest in respect of Agenda Item 9 P/01913/010 – 9-10 Chapel Street, Slough, in that the applicant was known to them as a member of the Labour Party. The Councillors confirmed that they would approach the item with an open mind, would take part in the debate and vote on the item.

Councillor Smith declared an interest in respect of Agenda Item 11 P/10864/006 – Former Heathrow Coldstore, Lakeside Industrial Estate, Lakeside Road, Colnbrook, Slough, in that as a member of the Colnbrook & Poyle Parish Council he had taken part in a discussion regarding this development. Councillor Smith advised that no vote had been carried out as part of this discussion, and that he retained an open mind and would debate and vote on the item.

14. Guidance on Predetermination/Predisposition - To Note

Members confirmed that they had read and understood the guidance note on Predetermination and Predisposition.

15. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 19th June, 2014

Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 19th June 2014 be approved as a correct record

16. Human Rights Act Statement - To Note

The Human Rights Act statement was noted.

17. Planning Applications

Details were tabled in the amendment sheet of alterations and amendments received since the agenda was circulated. The Committee adjourned for ten minutes to allow Members the opportunity to read the amendment sheet.

Councillor Hussain addressed the Committee in her capacity as Ward Member in respect of application P/006348/008 – Lion House: Depot & No. 10 Petersfield Avenue, Slough, SL2 5DN.

Resolved –That the decisions be taken in respect of the planning applications as set out in the minutes below, subject to the information, including conditions and informatives set out in the reports and the amendment sheet tabled at the meeting.

18. P/06348/008 - Lion House: Depot & No. 10, Petersfield Avenue, Slough, Berks, SL2 5DN

(Councillor Dar left the meeting at 6.50 pm and did not take part in the debate or vote on the application).

(Councillor Ajaib in the Chair).

Application	Decision
Application for an extension of time	Delegate to Development
for the implementation of an existing	Management Lead Officer subject to
planning permission (ref.	a Section 106 Obligation which
P/06348/007 dated 23/10/2008);	should include maximising the
demolition of buildings; erection of	availability for health care provision
building (3/5 storey) containing 90	
apartments and a health centre;	
conversion of 10 Petersfield Avenue	
from flats to a house (3 bedroom) with	
parking and landscaping.	

(Councillor Dar returned to the meeting at 7.43 pm).

(Councillor Dar in the Chair).

19. P/15809/000 - 412-426, Montrose Avenue, Slough

Application	Decision
Erection of a 2,995 sqm (gross	Deferred to allow provision of
external area) class A1 building,	improved revised access and car park
comprising two individual retail units	provision. To be referred back to
of 2,285 sqm and 710 sqm, new car	Committee at earliest available
parking, access, landscaping and all	opportunity and no later than 16 th
associated works	October, 2014.

(Councillor Sidhu left the meeting at 8.27 pm)

20. P/07830/015 - Lynch Hill (Primary) School, Garrard Road, Slough, Berkshire, SL2 2HX

Application	Decision
Construction and temporary use of a	Delegate to the Development
single storey building to	Management Lead Officer, finalising
accommodate additional classrooms	conditions and Section 106
and toilet facilities. (Amended plans.)	agreement.

21. P/01913/010 - 9-10, Chapel Street, Slough, SL1 1PF

(Councillor Rasib did not take part in the debate or vote on the item as he was not present when the Planning Officer introduced the application).

Application	Decision
Erection of a 5 storey building plus	Refused.
basement to provide a mixed use	
development comprising;	
A) Gymnasium, hair	
salon/beauticians and	
sauna/aerobics room at	
basement level	
B) 126 sqm of class A2 offices at	
ground floor level	
C) 2 no. X one bedroom flats and	
19 no. bedsit flats on four	
upper levels together with on	
site cycle and refuse storage at	
ground floor level (outline	
application with appearance	
and landscaping reserved for	
subsequent approval),	

22. P/05898/023 - Cornwall House, 67, High Street, Slough, SL1 1BZ

(Councillor Smith did not take part in the debate or vote on the item as he was not present when the Officer introduced the application).

Application	Decision
Change of use of upper floors from	Delegate to Development
offices (Class B1A) to residential	Management Lead Officer
(class C3) and construction of	
extensions to building to create 53 no.	
new apartments (27 no. one	
bedroom, 23 no. two bedroom, 3 no.	
three bedroom), and change of use	
and extension to existing ground floor	
unit to leisure use (class D2).	

(The meeting adjourned at 9.10 pm and reconvened at 9.20 pm).

23. P/10864/006 - Former Heathrow Coldstore, Lakeside Industrial Estate, Lakeside Road, Colnbrook, Slough, SL3 0ED

Application	Decision
Erection of a waste processing facility and link corridor (to an existing building used for food preparation and processing and distribution) with alterations to existing building.	Approved with conditions.

24. Planning Appeal Decisions

Resolved – That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted.

25. Members Attendance Record 2014/15

Resolved – That the Members Attendance Record be noted.

26. Any Other Business

The Committee requested that a Scrutiny review be undertaken to examine the Council's current parking, development and planning policies in the town centre and bordering areas.

Resolved- That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be recommended to undertake a review of the Council's current parking, development and planning policies in the town centre and bordering areas.

27. Date of Next Meeting

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as Wednesday, 3rd September 2014.

Chair

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 9.30 pm)

This page is intentionally left blank

Human Rights Act Statement

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000, and it will now, subject to certain expectations, be directly unlawful for a public authority to act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention Right. In particular Article 8 (Respect for Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (Peaceful Enjoyment of Property) apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made, however, there is further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority's decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act 1998 will not be referred to in the Officers Report for individual applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.

Please note the Ordnance Survey Maps for each of the planning applications are not to scale and measurements should not be taken from them. They are provided to show the location of the application sites.

CLU / CLUD	Certificate of Lawful Use / Development	
GOSE	Government Office for the South East	
HPSP	Head of Planning and Strategic Policy	
HPPP	Head of Planning Policy & Projects	
S106	Section 106 Planning Legal Agreement	
SPZ	Simplified Planning Zone	
TPO	Tree Preservation Order	
LPA	Local Planning Authority	

	USE CLASSES – Principal uses	
A1	Retail Shop	
A2	Financial & Professional Services	
A3	Restaurants & Cafes	
A4	Drinking Establishments	
A5	Hot Food Takeaways	
B1 (a)	Offices	
B1 (b)	Research & Development	
B1 (c)	Light Industrial	
B2	General Industrial	
B8	Warehouse, Storage & Distribution	
C1	Hotel, Guest House	
C2	Residential Institutions	
C2(a)	Secure Residential Institutions	
C3	Dwellinghouse	
C4	Houses in Multiple Occupation	
D1	Non Residential Institutions	
D2	Assembly & Leisure	
	OFFICER ABBREVIATIONS	

WMWesley McCarthyEWEdward WilsonHBHayley ButcherCSChris SmythRKRoger KirkhamHAHoward AlbertiniIHIan HannAMAnn MeadFIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan DymondGBGreg Bird		OFFICER ABBREVIATIONS
HBHayley ButcherCSChris SmythRKRoger KirkhamHAHoward AlbertiniIHIan HannAMAnn MeadFIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	WM	Wesley McCarthy
CSChris SmythRKRoger KirkhamHAHoward AlbertiniIHIan HannAMAnn MeadFIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	EW	Edward Wilson
RKRoger KirkhamHAHoward AlbertiniIHIan HannAMAnn MeadFIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	HB	Hayley Butcher
HAHoward AlbertiniIHIan HannAMAnn MeadFIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	CS	Chris Smyth
IHIan HannAMAnn MeadFIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	RK	Roger Kirkham
AMAnn MeadFIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	HA	Howard Albertini
FIFariba IsmatPSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	IH	lan Hann
PSPaul StimpsonJDJonathan Dymond	AM	Ann Mead
JD Jonathan Dymond	FI	Fariba Ismat
	PS	Paul Stimpson
GB Greg Bird	JD	Jonathan Dymond
	GB	Greg Bird

This page is intentionally left blank

Registration Date: Officer:	20-Jun-2014 Neetal Rajput	Applic. No: Ward: Applic type: 13 week date:	P/07830/016 Britwell and Northborough Major 19 th August 2014
Applicant:	Lynch Hill Primary School		
Agent:	Mr. Graham Eades, Hawkins Eades Associates 100, High Street, Great Missenden, Bucks, HP16 0BE		
Location:	LYNCH HILL (PRIMARY) SCHOOL, GARRARD ROAD, SLOUGH, BERKSHIRE, SL2 2HX		
Proposal:	CONSTRUCTION OF PART SINGLE, PART TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO PROVIDE NEW ADMINISTRATION FACILITIES EXTENSION TO HALL AND CANTEEN. NEW RECEPTION ENTRANCE FOYER.		

Recommendation: Delegate to the Acting Planning Manager



1.0 SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION

- 1.1 Having considered the relevant policies set out below, the representations received from consultees and all other relevant material considerations, it is recommended that the application be delegated to the Acting Planning Manager for formal determination following the consideration of any additional comments received from neighbouring consultees.
- 1.2 This application has been referred to the Planning Committee for consideration as the application is for a Major Development.

PART A: BACKGROUND

2.0 <u>Proposal</u>

- 2.1 This is a full planning application for the construction of a part single, part two storey extension to provide new administration facilities, expansion to hall and canteen. There will also be a new reception entrance foyer.
- 2.2 The proposed gross new internal floor area of the building would be 595 square metres. As the school has increased it's intake of pupil numbers over the years and is accommodating 80no. year 7 pupils and 6 staff, details of which can be found under planning application P/07830/015, there is a requirement to expand the existing facilities to meet the demand from pupils to ensure that facilities within the school are not compromised. There will the expansion of the Key Stage 1 hall and canteen with the addition of administrative facilities including but not limited to the Bursar's office and staff training/restroom.
- 2.3 This development proposes not to increase car or cycle parking spaces, nor any change to the number of employees or pupils. The new proposed access only pertains to the internal main entrance into the building and not the public highway. There is no loss of playing area as a result of this proposal.
- 2.4 The proposed extension would be 6.1 metres in height and there are a number of windows and doors proposed for adequate access and natural daylight. At the highest point, the proposed development measures 6.1 metres, matching the height of the existing buildings at the school.

3.0 Application Site

- 3.1 The site is currently used as a primary school. The school site is 2.9 hectares in area. Lynch Hill School is bordered on three sides by residential dwelling houses forming Gaveston Road, Calbroke Road and Lynch Hill Lane. The playing fields border Garrard Road with the school set back from this elevation. The main pedestrian access to the school is via Garrard Road.
- 3.2 The school is a 4 form entry and has capacity for 1000 pupils. Currently the school has 900 pupils.

4.0 <u>Site History</u>

4.1 Planning applications relating to the site are as follows:

P/07830/015

Construction and temporary use of a single storey building to accommodate four additional classrooms and toilet facilities.

Currently under determination and subject to contributions.

P/07830/014 Erection of single storey building. Approved with conditions; informatives; 1st May 2012

P/07830/013

Erection of single storey building to accommodate head teacher and ancillary offices, lecture rooms and changing facilities. Approved with conditions; informatives; 14th September 2011

P/07830/012

Modular Classroom block. Approved with conditions; informatives; 24th September 2013

P/07830/011

Erection of extension to existing nursery. Approved with conditions; informatives; 16th June 2011

P/07830/010

Extension to car park at Lynch Hill Primary School and creation of new access onto Garrard Road. Approved with conditions; informatives; 13th January 2012

P/07830/009

Erection of single storey buildings for storage and change rooms. Approved with conditions; informatives; 3rd July 2007

P/07830/008

Erection of 4No: 2 bedroom terraced dwellings and 1 No: 2 bedroom detached dwellings. Refused; 20^{th} June 2005

P/07830/007

Erection of new day care centre. Approved with conditions; informatives; 20th July 2004

P/07830/006

Erection of a single storey pitched roof extension to provide additional classroom. Approved with conditions; 13th February 2002

P/07830/005

Retention of replacement entrance gates and fencing. Approved with conditions; 21st November 2000

P/07830/004

Erection of single storey extension. Approved with conditions; 22nd April 1997

P/07830/003

Erection of single storey extension to administration block. Approved with conditions; 27th April 1994

P/07830/002

Submission of details of landscaping pursuant to planning consent P/07830/001 dated 28/07/1989 for extensions to the school. Withdrawn; 8th January 1990

P/07830/001

Alterations and extensions to existing school. Approved with conditions; 25th August 1989

P/07830/000

Erection of two temporary classrooms (reg 4) as amended 25/03/1988). Approved with conditions; 20th May 1988

5.0 <u>Neighbour Notification</u>

- 5.1 29, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 41, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 33, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 43, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 19, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 47, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 13, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 17, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 31, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 44, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 46, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 27, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 13, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 7, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 5, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HZ, 16, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 18, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 17, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 28, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 48a, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 30, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 44, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 20, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 3, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 15, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 48, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 9, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 13, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 15, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 17, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 4, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 50, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 32, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 34, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 50, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 14, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 11, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 13, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP, 3, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 7, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 9, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 26, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 43, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 19, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 21, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 48, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 23, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 9, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 11, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 11, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 27, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 41, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 21, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 29, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 25, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 24, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 42, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 23, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 52, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 52, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 54, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 5, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 1, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 58, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 1 Calbroke Court, 31, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 2 Calbroke Court, 31, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 3 Calbroke Court, 31, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 4 Calbroke Court, 31, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 39, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 8, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 54, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 58, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, Lynch Hill School, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2AN, 60, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 56, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 15, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 22, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 37, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 2, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 56, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 36, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 38, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 5, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 15, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 35, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QN, 27, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 7, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HZ, Thames Valley Police, 36, Buckingham Avenue, Slough, SL1 4QB, 35, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 23, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 26a, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 25, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 25, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 33, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 1, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 19, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 31, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 40, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 43, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 29, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 42, Lynch Hill Lane, Slough, SL2 2QL, 33, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 46, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, School House, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 37, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 37, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 39, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 9, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HW, 41, Gaveston Road, Slough, SL2 2HX, 6, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 40, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 35, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 39, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 45, Calbroke Road, Slough, SL2 2HY, 11, Garrard Road, Slough, SL2 2QW, 22, Cecil Way, Slough, SL2 2QP
- 5.2 In accordance with Article 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010, a site notice was displayed at the site. The application was

advertised in the 11th July 2014 edition of the Slough Express.

5.3 No representations have been received.

6.0 <u>Consultation</u>

- 6.1 Traffic and Road Safety/Highways Development
- 6.2 No objection to this application from a transport and highway perspective, subject to no increase in the number of pupils.
- 6.3 Britwell Parish Council
- 6.4 No comments have been received.
- 6.5 <u>Tree Management Officer</u>
- 6.6 The application proposed the removal of some shrubs and a small cypresses tree which will have an impact on the appearance of the entrance area of the school; this can be mitigated by a suitable landscape proposal.

The plans show the extension being sited quite near to a young lime tree which part of a row of 8no. similar limes which is to one side of the drive extending from the road entrance to the school. This tree is the furthest from the entrance. All these trees are in good health and they now form a notable feature which will become more prominent in time. However I noted on my site visit that the tree seemed to be wrongly plotted and the building will be outside the RPA of the tree and therefore will not be detrimental to the tree.

It should also be noted that generally the process of demolition and construction can be harmful in themselves causing disturbance in the RPA. The trees should be protected during these processes. However on this site, in the proximity of the development the RPA of the trees is protected by structures (bike sheds hard surfacing) making it unnecessary to have any other tree protection.

Accordingly I do not believe the proposed development will have a detrimental effect on the trees of the site.

- 6.7 <u>Asset Management Education Planning</u>
- 6.8 No comments have been received.

PART B: PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.0 Policy Background

7.1 The following policies are considered most relevant to the assessment of this application:

National Planning Policy Framework and the Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework

<u>The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan</u> <u>Document</u> Core Policy 1 – Spatial Strategy

Core Policy 7 – Transport

Core Policy 8 – Sustainability and the Environment Core Policy 11 – Social Cohesiveness Core Policy 12 – Community Safety

Local Plan for Slough March 2004 policies:

EN1 – Standard of Design EN3 – Landscaping Requirements EN5 – Design and Crime Prevention T2 – Parking Restraint T8 – Cycling Network and Facilities

OSC2 – Protection of School Playing Fields

- 7.2 The main planning issues relevant to the assessment of this application are considered to be as follows:
 - 1) Principle of development;
 - 2) Visual impact;
 - 3) Potential impact on neighbouring properties;
 - 4) Transport, parking/highway safety.

8.0 <u>Principle of Development</u>

- 8.1 As will be noted from the planning history of the site, there is an extensive history of planning applications relating to the development of the modular classrooms.
- 8.2 This application seeks only to improve the existing facilities serving the existing pupil numbers within the school. As confirmed by the agent, this application does not seek to increase the numbers of students within the school.
- 8.3 The canteen is to be extended into a neighbouring classroom, to allow for the additional accommodation required under the government's school meals program. The classroom lost is used only occasionally and its loss will be offset by additional and more flexible use of exiting classroom facilities within the school.
- 8.4 The proposal also involves the re-organisation and expansion of the main school entrance and administration facilities. As the school roll has increased so has the need for additional security and management of both pupils and parents. All pupils are collected by their parents via the main entrance and reception area and this existing facility has become too cramped and remote, to manage the number of pupils and parents involved. The new entrance and reception area will provide a clear focal point for entry and exit to the school buildings.
- 8.5 It is also proposed to provide new staff facilities at first floor level. The staff facilities are currently spread through the school and the school management is keen to provide one location for the staff to meet and relax during and after the school day.
- 8.6 The National Planning Policy Framework states at para. 72 that "local planning authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to … development that will widen choice in education."
- 8.7 Core Policy 6 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 2026, Development Plan Document similarly supports the provision of community facilities including education uses.
- 8.8 The supplementary text to Core Policy 5 of the Core Strategy which relates to employment identifies that there is a need for better education and training opportunities in order to improve

the skills of some of the resident work force. It is envisaged that the current skills gap will be reduced over time as a result of the continuing success of students attending schools and colleges.

- 8.9 Given the shortage of places SBC has undertaken a 'School Places Strategy' Part I Consideration and Comment, Dated 5 December 2013' which has involved site identification:
 - Examining existing school sites for expansion and/or ability to accommodate entirely new schools easily accessible to the site
 - Examining sites within the Council's ownership
 - Identifying sites adjoining or nearby secondary schools to create annexes
 - Identifying suitable sites within the borough for new primary or secondary schools. This has included considering sites identified for the Local Asset Backed Vehicle.
 - Identifying sites immediately outside the borough for new secondary schools.

It is considered that this proposal is seeking to improve the existing facilities serving the existing pupil numbers within the school. As there have been a number of applications submitted by the school over the years, to increase the number of classrooms and thus the number of pupils through various age groups attending the school, this has resulted in the existing facilities now under pressure and are becoming too small to accommodate the additional numbers. This proposal seeks to address the short fall in floor area to create a better learning and teaching environment for both staff and pupils.

8.10 The proposal would support the ongoing and established use of the site as a school to provide the extra floor space required to meet the existing pressure and demand from increased pupil intake. The principle of the proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable. The principle of the proposal would comply with Core Policies 5 and 6 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008, and the National Planning Policy Framework.

9.0 <u>Visual Impact</u>

- 9.1 The proposed development would be of proposed materials to match the existing building, this has been conditioned.
- 9.2 It is considered that the design and appearance of the proposed development would be inkeeping with the design and appearance of the existing school buildings.
- 9.3 It is considered that the proposed development would be well related to the existing school buildings. It is considered that the proposed buildings would have no adverse impact on the street scene as it is situated within the confines of the school grounds.
- 9.4 The proposed building is not occupying any formal playing field therefore complying with policy OCS2.
- 9.5 It has been noted that the school has implemented an attractive landscaping strategy and as such a condition has not been included to submit details of a landscape proposal relating to this development. The Council's Tree Management Officer has assessed the application and considered that the proposed development will not have a detrimental effect on the trees of the site.
- 9.6 The proposal is considered to be acceptable in design and street scene terms and would comply with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008; Policy EN1 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004; and the National Planning Policy Framework.

10.0 Potential Impact on Neighbouring Properties

- 10.1 The proposed building would be erected on the site of an existing school building. It is considered to be well-related to the existing school buildings and would have no potential adverse impact on neighbour amenity.
- 10.2 The closest dwellinghouses to the proposed building is No. 35 Gaveston Road and those fronting Lynch Hill Lane, the distance to these dwellings is over 40m.
- 10.3 To the east of the proposed building is the boundary of the school site. The rear gardens of the properties fronting Calbroke Road are situated beyond this boundary.
- 10.4 As the proposed extension does not exceed the height of existing buildings within the site, the proposal will not result in any adverse visual impact for the existing residential development.
- 10.5 It is considered that reasonable separation distance would be maintained between the proposed building and the neighbouring residential properties. It is not considered that the proposed extension would have a detrimental impact on neighbour amenity by reason of overdominance or loss of light.
- 10.6 It should be noted that the southern boundary with Garrard Road is interspersed with trees which would provide visual screening of the proposed development.
- 10.7 The proposal would thus comply with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008; Policy 8 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004; and the National Planning Policy Framework.

11.0 <u>Transport, Parking/Highway Safety</u>

- 11.1 Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 2026, Development Plan Document sets out the Planning Authority's approach to the consideration of transport matters. The thrust of this policy is to ensure that new development is sustainable and is located in the most accessible locations, thereby reducing the need to travel.
- 11.2 Policy T2 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004 seeks to restrain levels of parking in order to reduce the reliance on the private car through the imposition of parking standards.
- 11.3 The Council's Transport Consultant has commented that there are no objections to this application from a transport and highway perspective.

12.0 <u>Summary</u>

12.1 The proposal has been considered against relevant development plan policies, and regard has been had to the comments made by consultees, and all other relevant material considerations.

PART C: RECOMMENDATION

13.0 It is recommended that the application be delegated to the Acting Planning Manager for formal determination following the consideration of any additional comments received from neighbouring consultees.

14.0 PART D: LIST OF CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this permission.

REASON To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions, and to enable the Council to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby approved shall be implemented only in accordance with the following plans and drawings hereby approved by the Local Planning Authority:

(a) Drawing No. A1 3766 PLA 1.00, Dated APRIL 2014, Recd On 20/06/2014
(b) Drawing No. A1 3766 PLA 1.01, Dated APRIL 2014, Recd On 21/05/2014
(c) Drawing No. A1 3766 PLA 1.02, Dated APRIL 2014, Recd On 21/05/2014
(d) Drawing No. A1 3766 PLA 1.03, Dated APRIL 2014, Recd On 18/06/2014
(e) Drawing No. A1 3766 PLA 2.00, Dated APRIL 2014, Recd On 21/05/2014
(f) Drawing No. A1 3766 PLA 2.01, Dated APRIL 2014, Recd On 21/05/2014

REASON To ensure that the site is developed in accordance with the submitted application and to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenity of the area and to comply with the Policies in the Development Plan.

3. All new external work shall be carried out in materials that match as closely as possible the colour, texture and design of the existing building at the date of this permission.

REASON To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development so as not to prejudice the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy EN1 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

4. There shall be no increase in pupil numbers as a result of this proposal.

REASON In order to ensure that the development does not harm the existing amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties by adding to the already high level of onstreet parking stress in the area in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 - 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

5. No construction work shall take place outside the hours of 08:00 - 18:00 hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00 - 13:00 hrs on a Saturday and no working at all on Sundays or public holidays.

REASON In the interests of the amenities of the area in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 - 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008, and the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVE(S):

1. It is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the proposed development does improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area for the reasons given in this notice and it is in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. This page is intentionally left blank

Registration Date: Officer:	17-Mar-2014 Mr. J. Dymond	Applic. No: Ward: Applic type: 13 week date:	P/00440/008 Cippenham Green Major 16 th June 2014
Applicant:	Mr. Graeme Steer, Slough Trading Estate Limited		
Agent:	Mr. Benjamin Taylor, Barton Willmore Regent House, 4, Homer Road, Solihull, B91 3QQ		
Location:	Slough Estates Plc, 234, Bath Road, Slough, SL1 4EE		
Proposal:	PART-REFURBISHMENT AND CONSTRUCTION OF THREE STOREY CLASS B1(A) OFFICES, MEANS OF ACCESS, RE-CONFIGURATION OF SURFACE CAR PARK, CYCLE PARKING FACILITIES, DRAINAGE, LANDSCAPING AND ANCILLARY WORKS.		

Recommendation: Delegate to the Acting Planning Manager.



SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT TO PLANNING COMMITTEE

Background

At the Meeting of Planning Committee on 7th May 2014, the Committee resolved to delegate the determination of the application to the Strategic Lead Planning Policy. A copy of the original officer's report to Planning Committee (Appendix A) and associated amendments (Appendix B) are attached for information purposes.

Following this meeting, the applicant has further developed the detailed design of the scheme and amended the proposal. Façade material selection and detailed design options have been rigorously explored.

This amended proposal is being reported to Committee as it is considered that the nature of the changes would constitute material amendments to the scheme, albeit that they are minor in nature. Officers do not consider that the amendments can be pursued as 'non-material' minor amendments. Given that the application has not been formally determined, this supplementary report on the amended proposal has been prepared for Members' consideration.

Assessment of Detailed Design Amendments

Amended plans and a supporting document have been submitted for consideration.

The key aspects of the detailed design amendments are understood to be as follows:

- Small reduction in the roof overhang on the north west elevation of 1.8 metes;
- Amendment to the fin and plinth profile to form 'wedges', whilst maintaining the 'straightened' columns on the South Eastern Facade;
- Omission of single fin to each side of building adjacent to full height glazed area;
- Minor internal alterations to layout.

The overall scale, height and massing of the building remains largely unchanged and it is considered that the revised scheme would still result in a landmark building that reflects its prominent location at the gateway to the Slough Trading Estate. Furthermore, the proposed building would still address the geometry of Leigh Road by 'turning of the corner' in the same way as the previous scheme.

Central to the scheme is the entry colonnade and associated fins and plinths which wrap around the facade. These are considered to create a strong visual identity and are contrasted by full height glazed areas.

It is considered that the robustness of the proposed building would be maintained and enhanced. It is submitted that the proposed tapered edges present a slender profile which strengthens the vertical nature of the design.

It is considered that the amendments would constitute refinements to the architectural detailing of the building which would enhance its appearance. The overall design approach, materials and colouration of the building are consistent with the previous scheme.

It is also submitted that the proposed changes will have no implications in terms of the agreement reached with Thames Water to build over the sewer.

Reconsultation has been undertaken on the amendments received and at the time of writing, no representations have been received in response to this.

It is considered that the proposed amendments would be acceptable. The proposed amendments would result in a high quality development which would respond sympathetically to its context through the careful consideration of the layout, scale, appearance and landscaping treatments. Consequently, the scheme is considered to provide improvements to its surroundings, and the building will create a legible landmark at the gateway to the Trading Estate. The proposal is considered to comply with Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy and Policy EN1 of the Adopted Local Plan for Slough.

Other Issues

Further discussion has taken place with the applicant regarding the recommended planning conditions concerning demolition. Further information has been submitted in the form of a Demolition Protocol and details of loading/unloading. Having regard this information, and the extant prior notification for proposed demolition, it is considered that the need for and wording of conditions regarding demolition can be reviewed.

In addition, the Section 106 Agreement is currently being progressed and it is therefore recommended that the determination of the application is delegated to the Acting Planning Manager following the completion of this Agreement and finalising of planning conditions.

For completeness, an updated list of recommended planning conditions is set out below.

RECOMMENDATION

Delegate to Acting Planning Manager.

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this permission.

REASON To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions, and to enable the Council to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby approved shall be implemented only in accordance with the following plans and drawings hereby approved by the Local Planning Authority:

Drawing No. Site Location Plan (Drawing PL 000), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Existing Condition: Site Plan (Drawing PL 001), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Existing Condition: Basement Floor Plan (Drawing PL 002), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Existing Condition: Ground Floor Plan (Drawing PL 003), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Site Plan (Drawing PL 010 Rev 04), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 11/08/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Basement Plan (Drawing PL 099 Rev 05), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 11/08/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Ground Floor Plan (Drawing PL 100 Rev 05), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 11/08/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: First Floor Plan (Drawing PL 101 Rev 04), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 11/08/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Second Floor Plan (Drawing PL 102 Rev 03), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 11/08/2014

Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Roof Plan (Drawing PL 103 Rev 04), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 11/08/2014

Drawing No. Proposed Condition Section AA (Drawing PL 200 Rev 01), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 06/08/2014

Drawing No. Proposed Condition Section BB-CC (Drawing PL 201 Rev 02), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 06/08/2014

Drawing No. Proposed Condition: North East & South West Elevations (Drawing PL 300 Rev 03), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 06/08/2014

Drawing No. Proposed Condition: North West & South East Elevations (Drawing PL 301 Rev 02), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 06/08/2014

Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Detailed Elevation Section Plan (Drawing PL 400 Rev 05), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 06/08/2014

Drawing No. Landscape Proposals Plan (Drawing ASA-415-DR-001 Rev B) Dated March 2014, Recd On 30/04/14

Drawing No. Foul and Surface Water Drainage Strategy (Drawing 018975-CA-0-B01-DSP-SE-015), Dated Mar 2014, Recd On 19/03/2014

REASON To ensure that the site is developed in accordance with the submitted application and to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenity of the area and to comply with the Policies in the Development Plan.

3. Samples of external materials to be used on the development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the scheme is commenced on site and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

REASON To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development so as not to prejudice the visual amenity of the locality in accordance with Policy EN1 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

4. Samples of external materials to be used in the construction of the access road, pathways and communal areas within the development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the scheme is commenced on site and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

REASON To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development so as not to prejudice the visual amenity of the locality in accordance with Policy EN1 of The Local Adopted Plan for Slough 2004.

5. No development shall commence on site until a detailed landscaping and tree planting scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme should include the trees and shrubs to be retained and/or removed and the type, density, position and planting heights of new trees and shrubs.

The approved scheme shall be carried out no later than the first planting season following completion of the development. Within a five year period following the implementation of the scheme, if any of the new or retained trees or shrubs should die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, then they shall be replaced in the next planting season with another of the same species and size as agreed in the landscaping tree planting scheme by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and accordance with Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

6. No development shall commence until tree protection measures during construction of the development for existing retained trees (as identified on the approved landscaping scheme) in accordance with BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to Design Demolition and Construction have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These measures shall be implemented prior to works beginning on site and shall be provided and maintained during the period

of construction works.

REASON To ensure the satisfactory retention of trees to be maintained in the interest of visual amenity and to meet the objectives of Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

7. No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed boundary treatment including position, external appearance, height and materials have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Before the development hereby permitted is occupied, a suitable means of his boundary treatment shall be implemented on site prior to the first occupation of the development and retained at all time on the future.

REASON In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and accordance with Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 41, Class A of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended), no extension or alteration to the office building shall take place without the express permission of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON In the interests of the amenities of the area in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

9. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 3 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended), the building shall only be used for office purposes falling within Class B1(a) of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (and in any provision equivalent to the Class in any statutory instrument revoking or re-enacting that order) and for no other purpose.

REASON In the interests of ensuring that there is no loss of the defined Existing Business Areas to non-employment generating uses in accordance with Core Policy 5 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

10. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for external site lighting including details of the lighting units, levels of illumination and hours of use. No lighting shall be provided at the site other than in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON In the interests of the amenities of the area and to comply with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 - 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

11. Before the northern access to Leigh Road is stopped up, full details of the means of access to the basement car park from the surface car park (which shall include plans, elevations, sections and swept path analysis) shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. Once approved, the means of access to the basement car park shall be constructed and made available for use before the northern access to Leigh Road is stopped up.

REASON In the interests of providing access to the basement car park in light of future highway alterations in the vicinity of the site in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

12. No development shall be begun until details of the cycle parking provision (including location, housing and cycle stand details) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with these details prior to the occupation of the development and shall be retained at all times in the future for this purpose.

REASON To ensure that there is adequate cycle parking available at the site in accordance with Policy T8 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004, and to meet the objectives of the Slough Integrated Transport Strategy.

13. At least 10% of the energy supply of the new build area of the development shall be secured from renewable and low carbon energy (as described in the glossary of the National Planning Policy Framework). Details and a timetable of how this is to be achieved, including details of physical works on site, shall be submitted to and approved in writing to the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted. The approved details shall be implemented in accordance with the approved timetable and retained as operational thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON In order to comply with the requirements of Core Policy 8 of the Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document.

- 14. The development shall not commence until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include measures to:
 - (a) Minimise, re-use and re-cycle waste, including materials and waste arising from demolition;
 - (b) Minimise the pollution potential of unavoidable waste; and
 - (c) Dispose of unavoidable waste in an environmentally acceptable manner.

The approved details shall be implemented during the course of building operations and the subsequent use of the building.

REASON In the interests of highway safety and operation in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

15. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of refuse storage, refuse collection and recycling facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and made available for use prior to the development herby approved first being brought into use.

REASON To ensure that adequate onsite servicing can take place and in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

16. A Service Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted. The Service Management Plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON To ensure that adequate onsite servicing can take place and in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

17. The development shall not take place until a plan showing the new CCTV locations within the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter no occupation of the development shall take place until details of the new CCTV within the site, if any, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter implemented in accordance with the approved details. This shall include details of:

- The specification, transmission and monitoring of the CCTV cameras to be installed;

- The method of connecting the CCTV cameras to the existing SEGRO CCTV Network; and

- The ongoing maintenance of the CCTV cameras.

REASON To reflect the permitted CCTV locations in the Adopted Simplified Planning Zone, November 2004. To ensure the public's safety throughout all stages of the development in accordance with Core Policy 12 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

18. Full details of the surface water collection and conveyance for all hard surfaced areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of the development, excluding any demolition works. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON In the interest of the safety and amenity of both public highway and adjoining properties in accordance with Core Policies 7 and 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

- 19. Demolition and construction shall be carried out in accordance with the following documents and plans, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority:
 - (a) Document Title: R.Collard Demolition Protocol, Received 07/08/2014
 - (b) Document Title: Demolition Method Statement for the Traffic Management, Received 04/07/2014;
 - (c) Drawing No. Wates/Slough2, Dated 30/06/14, Received 04/07/2014;
 - (d) Drawing Title: Site Set Up, Dated 30-06-14, Received 04/07/2014;
 - (e) Drawing Title: Traffic Routes, Dated 30-06-14, Received 04/07/2014;
 - (f) Drawing Title: Traffic Plans, Dated 30-06-14, Received 04/07/2014.

REASON In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area in accordance with Core Policies 7 and 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

20. Phase 1 Desk Study

Development works shall not be commenced until a phased risk assessment shall be carried out by a competent person in accordance with Government, Environment Agency and Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) guidance and approved Codes of practices, including but not limited to, the Environment Agency model procedure for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11 and Contaminated Land Exposure Assessment (CLEA) framework, and CIRIA Contaminated Land Risk Assessment Guide to Good Practice C552. Phase 1 shall incorporate a Desk Study (including a site walkover) to identify all potential sources of contamination at the site, potential receptors and potential pollutant linkages (PPLs) to inform the site preliminary Conceptual Site Model (CSM). The Desk Study shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to development commencement.

REASON To ensure that the site is adequately risk assessed for the proposed development in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

21. Phase 2 Intrusive Investigation Method Statement

Should the findings of the desk study identify the potential for contamination, then the development shall not commence until an Intrusive Investigation Method Statement (IIMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The IIMS shall be designed in accordance with current guidance, standards and approved Codes of Practice including, but not limited to, BS5930, BS10175, CIRIA 665 and BS8576. The IIMS shall include, as a minimum, a position statement on the available and previously completed site investigation information, a rationale for the further site

investigation required, including details of locations of such investigations, details of the methodologies, sampling and monitoring proposed.

REASON To ensure that the type, nature and extent of contamination present, and the risks to receptors are adequately characterised, and to inform any remediation strategy proposal in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

22. Phase 3 Site Specific Remediation Strategy

The remediation works shall not commence until a Site Specific Remediation Strategy (SSRS) has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The SSRS shall, as a minimum, contain details of any additional site investigation undertaken with a full review and update of the preliminary Conceptual Site Model (CSM), the precise location of the remediation scheme and/or monitoring proposed, including earth movements, licensing and regulatory liaison, health, safety and environmental controls, and any validation requirements.

REASON To ensure that remediation works are adequately carried out, to safeguard the environment and to ensure that the development is suitable for the proposed use in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

23. Remediation Validation

No development (within or adjacent to any area(s) subject to remedial work) shall be commissioned and/or occupied until a full validation report for the purposes of human health protection has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall include details of the implementation of the remedial strategy and any contingency plan works approved pursuant to the Site Specific Remediation Strategy condition above. In the event that gas and/or vapour protection measures are specified by the remedial strategy, the report shall include written confirmation from a Building Control Regulator that all such measures have been implemented.

REASON To ensure that remedial work is adequately validated and recorded, in the interest of safeguarding public health and in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

24. No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters.

REASON In accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008. Given the industrial history of the development site, there is a potential for contamination to be present. Infiltrating surface water can remobilise contaminants present in shallow soils/made ground that could ultimately enter the underlying groundwater resulting in pollution.

25. No impact piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to subsurface sewerage infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved piling method statement.

REASON In accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008. The proposed works will be in

close proximity to underground sewerage utility infrastructure. Piling has the potential to impact on local underground sewerage utility infrastructure. Piling also has the potential to create migration pathways for contaminants which could increase the risk to the groundwater in the Major Aquifer.

26. No development, excluding any demolition works, shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles, assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development and risks to ground water from historical contamination, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.

REASON To prevent the increased risk of flooding and to additional risks to groundwater by considering the risks due to infiltration of surface water grounds where both land and groundwater may be contaminated in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

27. No development, excluding any demolition works, shall commence until a drainage strategy detailing any on and off-site works to the public and private sewerage system together with any phasing arrangements, has been submitted to and approved by, the local planning authority in consultation with the sewerage undertaker. No phase of the development shall be occupied until any associated drainage diversion and/or upgrade works recommended by the strategy has been completed.

REASON To ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to cope with new development and in order to avoid adverse environmental impact upon the community in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

INFORMATIVES:

- 1. The applicant is reminded that an Agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 has been entered into with regards to the application hereby approved.
- 2. Surface Water Drainage With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of groundwater. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0845 850 2777.
- 3. There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. In order to protect public sewers and to ensure that Thames Water can gain access to those sewers for future repair and maintenance, approval should be sought from Thames Water where the erection of a building or an extension to a building or underpinning work would be over the line of, or would come within 3 metres of, a public sewer. Thames Water will usually refuse such approval in respect of the construction of new buildings, but approval may be granted in some cases for extensions to existing buildings. The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the options available at this site.
- 4. Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their proposal, protection to the property by installing for example, a non-return valve or other suitable device to avoid the risk of backflow at a later date, on the assumption that the sewerage network may surcharge to ground level during storm conditions.

- 5. Where a developer proposes to discharge groundwater into a public sewer, a groundwater discharge permit will be required. Groundwater discharges typically result from construction site dewatering, deep excavations, basement infiltration, borehole installation, testing and site remediation. Groundwater permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by telephoning 020 8507 4890 or by emailing wwqriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality. Any discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991.
- 6. The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the details of the piling method statement.
- Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses.
- 8. Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat trap on all catering establishments. We further recommend, in line with best practice for the disposal of Fats, Oils and Grease, the collection of waste oil by a contractor, particularly to recycle for the production of bio diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations may result in this and other properties suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and pollution to local watercourses.
- 9. It is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the proposed development does improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area for the reasons given in this notice and it is in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

1.0 SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION

- 1.1 This application has been referred to the Planning Committee for consideration as the application is for a major development.
- 1.2 Having considered the relevant policies set out below, the comments from consultees received to date and all other relevant material considerations, it is recommended that the application be:

Delegated to Strategic Lead Planning Policy for final determination following consideration of further details/amendments relating to transport and highway matters, finalising of conditions and completion of a Section 106 Agreement.

PART A: BACKGROUND

2.0 Proposal

- 2.1 This is a full planning application for the proposed part-refurbishment and construction of a high quality B1(a) office building which will form an important gateway to the Trading Estate.
- 2.2 The proposed building is three storeys in height and includes a triple height glazed atrium. The proposed building will have a Gross External Area (GEA) of 8,434m2 with a Gross Internal Area (GIA) of 7,746m2.
- 2.3 The proposal involves the re-use of the existing floor plates of the western building. The eastern building would be demolished as the applicant considers that it is unsuitable and does not meet modern office requirements.
- 2.4 The proposed building has been designed to provide efficiency and flexibility to accommodate the needs of future occupiers.
- 2.5 The office floors would be laid out in an arrangement that will provide for either a single occupier or multiple tenants.
- 2.6 The proposal also involves the upgrading of the existing surface car park access on to Leigh Road and the reconfiguration of this car park, the provision of cycle parking facilities, drainage, landscaping and ancillary works.
- 2.7 The proposed development has been the subject of pre-application advice. Changes have been undertaken to the proposed development during the course of pre-application discussions in response to the advice provided by officers.

3.0 Application Site

- 3.1 The site comprises 0.91 hectares of land situated within Slough Trading Estate, which is located approximately 1.6 kilometres to the west of Slough Town Centre. The Trading Estate covers an area of 162.4 hectares and the Great Western Main line runs east to west through the southern part of the Trading Estate.
- 3.2 The site lies in the central southern part of the Trading Estate, on the corner of Leigh Road

and Bath Road. Leigh Road provides one of five accesses into the Trading Estate from Bath Road.

- 3.3 The site is bounded to the north by office car parking (occupied by LG), to the south by Bath Road and corresponding Service Road; to the east by Leigh Road and to the west by office buildings (the adjacent building is currently occupied by Fiat).
- 3.4 The site comprises two office buildings of three storeys in height, with a glazed reception area linking the two. Both eastern and western buildings were occupied by the applicant and have now both been vacated. The existing basement and surface level car parks provide a total of 223 spaces. Hard and soft landscaping surrounds the building.
- 3.5 It is considered that the predominant character of office buildings located on the northern side of Bath Road are typified by grand entrances created by substantial open space, soft and hard landscaping, as well as canopies supported on full height columns.
- 3.6 The immediate surroundings of the site, to the west, north and east, comprise Slough Trading Estate which include primarily industrial and warehouse uses. There are commercial uses on the southern side of Bath Road
- 3.7 It is understood that the Estate currently accommodates approximately 17,500 employees working within around 400 companies.
- 3.8 The site is considered to benefit from good pedestrian and cycle links. Pedestrian access to the application site is currently provided by two metre footways on the service road and Leigh Road, which flank the southern and eastern boundaries of the site, respectively. The opportunity to walk and cycle on Bath Road is good, with two shared footway/cycle-ways provided along the southern and northern side of Bath Road. There are signalised pedestrian and cycle crossings provided across Bath Road.
- 3.9 A cycle hire hub has recently been provided by Slough Borough Council opposite the application site on Bath Road. This provides the opportunity to hire bicycles to link with journeys via Burnham and Slough railway stations. The nearest bus stops to the application site are located on Bath Road, with eastbound and westbound stops both within a 170 meter walk.
- 3.10 Burnham Station is the nearest railway station to the application site and is located approximately 1.6 kilometres to the west of the site.

4.0 <u>Site History</u>

- 4.1 Previous applications of relevance to the site and the surrounding area are considered to be as follows:
 - P/14515/007 SUBMISSION OF DETAILS PURSUANT TO CONDITION 6 (DETAILS OF THE NEW BRIDGE) OF OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION P/14515/003 DATED 18/06/ 2012 FOR OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR MEANS OF ACCESS (IN PART FOR CHANGES TO LEIGH ROAD/BATH ROAD JUNCTION, ACCESS AND RE-ALIGNMENT OF LEIGH ROAD, AND CHANGES TO AND NEW ROADS OFF LEIGH ROAD, CHANGES TO IPSWICH ROAD/BATH ROAD, GALVIN ROAD/BATH ROAD AND SERVICE ROAD AND EDINBURGH AVENUE/FARNHAM ROAD JUNCTIONS AND ACCESS), DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES AND REDEVELOPMENT OF THE LEIGH ROAD CENTRAL CORE, CONSISTING OF OFFICES (B1A), HOTELS (C1), RETAIL (A1), FINANCIAL

AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (A2), RESTAURANTS (A3), DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS (A4), HOT FOOD TAKEAWAY (A5), CONFERENCE FACILITIES, SKILLS AND LEARNING CENTRE, CRÈCHE (ALL D1) HEALTH CLUB/GYM (D2), TRANSPORT HUBS, NEW LEIGH ROAD BRIDGE, PARKING, HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING, CCTV, LIGHTING, STREET FURNITURE, BOUNDARY TREATMENT AND ALL ENABLING AND ANCILLARY WORKS.

Conditions Complied With 23-Dec-2013

P/14515/006 SUBMISSION OF DETAILS TO DISCHARGE CONDITION 16 OF PLANNING PERMISSION P/14515/003, DATED 18/06/2012 RELATING TO ARCHAEOLOGICAL EVALUATION

Conditions Complied With; Informatives 05-Aug-2013

P/14515/005 RESERVED MATTERS (LAYOUT, SCALE, APPEARANCE AND LANDSCAPING) PURSUANT TO CONDITION 3 OF PLANNING PERMISSION P/14515/3, DATED 18 JUNE 2012, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF B1(A) OFFICES (PLOT OB01) DECKED AND SURFACE LEVEL CAR PARK (PLOT CP01) CYCLE PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND ANCILLARY WORKS.

Approved with Conditions; Informatives 10-Sep-2013

P/14515/004 NON-MATERIAL AMENDMENTS TO AMEND THE APPROVED PARAMETERS PLAN PL/01/03, LISTED IN CONDITION 4 OF PLANNING PERMISSION P/14515/003, DATED 18TH JUNE 2012 (OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR MEANS OF ACCESS (IN PART FOR CHANGES TO LEIGH ROAD/BATH ROAD JUNCTION, ACCESS AND RE-ALIGNMENT OF LEIGH ROAD, AND CHANGES TO AND NEW ROADS OFF LEIGH ROAD, CHANGES TO IPSWICH ROAD/BATH ROAD, GALVIN ROAD/BATH ROAD AND SERVICE ROAD AND EDINBURGH AVENUE/FARNHAM ROAD JUNCTIONS AND ACCESS), DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES AND REDEVELOPMENT OF THE LEIGH ROAD CENTRAL CORE, CONSISTING OF OFFICES (B1A), HOTELS (C1), RETAIL (A1), FINANCIAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (A2), RESTAURANTS (A3), DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS (A4), HOT FOOD TAKEAWAY (A5), CONFERENCE FACILITIES, SKILLS AND LEARNING CENTRE, CRÉCHE (ALL D1) HEALTH CLUB/GYM (D2), TRANSPORT HUBS, NEW LEIGH ROAD BRIDGE, PARKING, HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING, CCTV, LIGHTING, STREET FURNITURE, BOUNDARY TREATMENT AND ALL ENABLING AND ANCILLARY WORKS).

Approved with Conditions; Informatives 23-Jan-2013

P/14515/003 OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR MEANS OF ACCESS (IN PART FOR CHANGES TO LEIGH ROAD/BATH ROAD JUNCTION, ACCESS AND RE-ALIGNMENT OF LEIGH ROAD, AND CHANGES TO AND NEW ROADS OFF LEIGH ROAD, CHANGES TO IPSWICH ROAD/BATH ROAD, GALVIN ROAD/BATH ROAD AND SERVICE ROAD AND EDINBURGH AVENUE/FARNHAM ROAD JUNCTIONS AND ACCESS), DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES AND REDEVELOPMENT OF THE LEIGH ROAD CENTRAL CORE, CONSISTING OF OFFICES (B1A), HOTELS (C1), RETAIL (A1), FINANCIAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (A2), RESTAURANTS (A3), DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS (A4), HOT FOOD TAKEAWAY (A5), CONFERENCE FACILITIES, SKILLS AND LEARNING CENTRE, CRÈCHE (ALL D1) HEALTH CLUB/GYM (D2), TRANSPORT HUBS, NEW LEIGH ROAD BRIDGE, PARKING, HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING, CCTV, LIGHTING, STREET FURNITURE, BOUNDARY TREATMENT AND ALL ENABLING AND ANCILLARY WORKS.

Approved with Conditions; Informatives 18-Jun-2012

P/00440/006 APPLICATION FOR PRIOR NOTIFICATION OF PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF 234 BATH ROAD

Prior Approval Not Required 29-Jul-2011

P/14515/000 OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR MEANS OF ACCESS (IN PART FOR CHANGES TO LEIGH ROAD/BATH ROAD JUNCTION AND ACCESS AND REALIGNMENT OF LEIGH ROAD), DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND REDEVELOPMENT OF THE LEIGH ROAD CENTRAL CORE, CONSISTING OF OFFICES (B1A), HOTEL (C1), RETAIL (A1), FINANCIAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (A2), RESTAURANTS (A3), DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS (A4), HOT FOOD TAKEAWAYS (A5), CONFERENCE FACILITY, SKILLS AND LEARNING CENTRE, CRÈCHE (ALL D1), HEALTH CLUB/GYM (D2), TRANSPORT HUB, NEW LEIGH ROAD BRIDGE, PARKING HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING, CCTV, LIGHTING, STREET FURNITURE, BOUNDARY TREATMENT AND ALL ENABLING AND ANCILLARY WORKS.

Approved with Conditions; Informatives 30-Sep-2010

P/00440/005 ERECTION OF EXTENSION TO EXISTING BUILDING. (AMENDED PLANS 16.8.95)

Approved with Conditions; Informatives 08-Sep-1995

5.0 <u>Neighbour Notification</u>

5.1 Citroen Uk Ltd, 221, Bath Road, Slough, SL1 4BA, Lonza Biologics Plc, 224-230, Bath Road, Slough, SL1 4DX, Artemis Management Systems Ltd, Artemis House, 219, Bath Road, Slough, SL1 4AA, Matalan Retail Ltd, 217a, Bath Road, Slough, SL1 4AA, L G Electronics, 250-252, Bath Road, Slough, SL1 4DX, 275, Leigh Road, Slough, Berkshire, 240, Bath Road, Slough, Berkshire, 816, Leigh Road, Slough, SL1 4BD, Unilever, 225, Bath Road, Slough, Berkshire, SL1 4AA

In accordance with Article 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010, a site notice was displayed at the site and the application has been advertised in The Slough Express.

5.2 No representations received.

6.0 <u>Consultation</u>

6.1 Thames Water

No comments received.

6.2 Environmental Protection

No comments received.

6.3 Tree Officer

I would not object to the application but to ensure the survival of the existing landscaping and to insure the new landscaping is enforceable I would recommend that if planning permission is granted that conditions are applied to require full details of the proposed landscaping and to require detail of tree protection methods which should be in accordance with BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to Design Demolition and Construction and include a plan.

6.4 Transport/Highway Safety

Trip Generation

Trip rates have been agreed and they show that the development will generate an additional 319 vehicle movements per day of which 96 will fall within the AM and PM peak periods.

Car Parking

The existing site has 223 car parking spaces and there is no proposed increase, which is in accordance with Slough Local Plan Policies. The existing office has parking provision of 1 space per 28m2 and the new building with provide parking at 1 space per 38m2, which is still below the 1 space per 40m2 which is the adopted parking standard for new B1 office. So on the assumption there is no overspill parking created then this can be considered as a benefit of the development.

Revisions to aisle widths and the location of disabled spaces are required.

Access

Revised drawings are required in relation to the proposed alterations to the northern access point. Landscaping should be reinstated and a smaller overrun should be incorporated. It is important not to forget the importance of the Leigh Road as a pedestrian corridor and therefore a high quality pedestrian route is necessary and therefore the access does not need to be this large.

Details will be required of internal car park access arrangements – PBA Drawing 17563/478/002 shows that the northern access will be completely removed if the LRCC2 Masterplan improvements are implemented along Leigh Road.

The increased width of the existing accesses serving the ground floor car park is acceptable.

Cycle Parking

68 cycle parking spaces are shown which is in accordance with the Slough Local Plan cycle parking standard of 1 space per 125m2 of floor area. The racks are space 0.9m to 1m apart which is considered acceptable. There is also space to increase cycle parking provision if required. 8 showers and 32 lockers are proposed at basement level and this provision is welcomed.

Travel Plan

The travel plan does not currently meet the standard required and must be updated. Should

the application be approved, it is recommended that a £6,000 Travel Plan Contribution is sought.

Mitigation

Whilst there is an increase in vehicle and person trips related to this development, it is recognised that this development forms part of the LRCC2 floor area and therefore will in due course trigger the wider mitigation package and therefore further mitigation aside from the travel plan is not required in this instance.

Conclusion

In summary, the following revisions are required:

- Modifications to the northern access bellmouth;
- Revised drawings showing 6m wide car park aisle widths;
- Revised drawings showing LRCC2 layout with stopping up of northern access and car ramp between ground floor and basement car park;
- Clarification on disabled parking;
- Clarification on access barrier location;
- Clarification on car parking on access;
- Revised drawings showing cycle ramp to basement;
- Updated and revised travel plan to meet acceptable standard.

6.5 Berkshire Archaeology

No objection.

PART B: PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.0 Policy Background

7.1 The following policies are considered most relevant to the assessment of this application:

The National Planning Policy Framework and the Planning Practice Guidance

<u>The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan</u> <u>Document</u>

Core Policy 1 – Spatial Strategy

- Core Policy 5 Employment
- Core Policy 7 Transport

Core Policy 8 – Sustainability and the Environment

Core Policy 9 – Natural and Built Environment

- Core Policy 10 Infrastructure
- Core Policy 11 Social Cohesiveness
- Core Policy 12 Community Safety

The Local Plan for Slough, Adopted March 2004

Policy EMP2 – Criteria for Business Developments

Policy EMP7 – Slough Trading Estate

Policy EN1 – Standard of Design

Policy EN3 – Landscaping Requirements

Policy EN5 – Design and Crime Prevention

Policy EN34 – Utility Infrastructure Policy T2 – Parking Restraint Policy T7 – Rights of Way Policy T8 – Cycling Network and Facilities Policy T9 – Bus Network and Facilities

Composite Local Plan – Slough Local Development Plan and the NPPF - PAS Self Assessment Checklist

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that applications for planning permission are determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Annex 1 to the National Planning Policy Framework advises that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).

The Local Planning Authority has published a self assessment of the Consistency of the Slough Local Development Plan with the National Planning Policy Framework using the PAS NPPF Checklist.

The detailed Self Assessment undertaken identifies that the above policies are generally in conformity with the National Planning Policy Framework. The policies that form the Slough Local Development Plan are to be applied in conjunction with a statement of intent with regard to the presumption in favour of sustainable development.

It was agreed at Planning Committee in October 2012 that it was not necessary to carry out a full scale review of Slough's Development Plan at present, and that instead the parts of the current adopted Development Plan or Slough should all be republished in a single 'Composite Development Plan' for Slough. The Planning Committee endorsed the use of this Composite Local Plan for Slough in July 2013.

Other Relevant Documents/Guidance

Local Development Framework Site Allocations Development Plan Document Slough Borough Council Developer's Guide Parts 1-4

- 7.2 The main planning issues relevant to the assessment of this application are considered to be as follows:
 - 1) Principle of development;
 - 2) Design and Impact on the street scene;
 - 3) Parking and highway safety;
 - 4) Heads of terms.

8.0 Principle of Development

- 8.1 A presumption in favour of sustainable development lies at the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework. It is recognised that sustainable development has economic, social and environmental dimensions that are mutually dependent. The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Government's commitment to securing economic growth in order to create jobs and prosperity and states that the planning system should help to facilitate this.
- 8.2 Development plan policies relevant to the consideration of the principle of the proposed development are as follows:

- 8.3 Core Policy 1 of the Core Strategy sets out the overarching spatial strategy for development within the Borough. This policy requires that the scale and density of development will be related to the site's current or proposed accessibility, character and surroundings.
- 8.4 Core Policy 5 of the Core Strategy states:

Intensive employment-generating uses such as B1(a) offices will be located in the town centre in accordance with the spatial strategy.

B1(a) offices may also be located on the Slough Trading Estate, as an exception, in order to facilitate the comprehensive regeneration of the estate.

8.5 Policy EMP2 sets out criteria for business developments and Policy EMP7 relates to the Slough Trading Estate. This policy states:

Within the Slough Trading Estate, as shown on the Proposals Map, developments for B1 business, B2 general industrial and B8 warehousing and distribution will be permitted subject to:

a) major independent B1(a) office developments being located on the Bath Road frontage in accordance with the application of a sequential approach under Policy EMP1; and

b) there being no overall increase in the number of car parking spaces within the estate.

8.6 The Trading Estate is identified as an Existing Business Area. Whilst a Simplified Planning Zone Scheme is in operation for the Trading Estate, the proposed development would fall outside of the scope of this and as such planning permission is required.

8.7 Demolition of eastern building

8.8 There is considered to be no objection to the demolition of the existing eastern building. A Certificate of Immunity was issued in respect of this building at 234 Bath Road in February 2012. The effect of the certificate is to preclude the Secretary of State from listing 234 Bath Road (East Building) as a building of special architectural or historic interest for a period of five years (i.e. till 29th February 2017), and to preclude the Local Planning Authority from serving a Building Preservation Notice on the building during that time.

8.9 Proposed part-refurbishment and construction

- 8.10 In assessing the acceptability of the principle of the proposed development, regard should be had to the relevant policy context set out above and the recent planning history. It is important to note that the Trading Estate is identified as an area for comprehensive regeneration in the Core Strategy to enable it to continue to attract inward investment, create jobs and offer opportunities for improving skills and training to local people.
- 8.11 Outline planning permission was granted in September 2010 for the re-development of the core area of the Trading Estate, known as the Leigh Road Commercial Core (LRCC1) under application P/14515/000.
- 8.12 Following this approval, the Site Allocations Development Plan Document was adopted in November 2010. The site falls within site allocation SSA4 as set out in the Site Allocations Development Plan Document. This allocation seeks to ensure that the comprehensive regeneration of the Trading Estate takes place in accordance with the masterplan and

continues to provide employment opportunities and inward investment. A site planning requirement is for 130,000 square metres (GIA) of additional new B1 (a) offices to be built out in the Leigh Road Central Core area.

- 8.13 Outline planning permission was subsequently granted under application P/14515/003 in June 2012 to provide a hub for the Trading Estate. This planning permission is known as LRCC2 and included an amended masterplan. This masterplan comprises a series of development plots. The development of each plot is underpinned by an approved Parameters Plan that was the subject of a Non Material Amendment (P/14515/004) that was approved in January 2013.
- 8.14 The approved LRCC1 and LRCC2 applications have established the principle of delivering a gateway office building at the entrance to the regeneration area.
- 8.15 Whilst the application under consideration is a full planning application, it should be noted that the proposed building falls within the approved parameters for the plot established by the LRCC2 outline planning permission.
- 8.16 Under this outline permission, the parameters for the approved office building on this site (referred to as 'OB 01') were as follows:
- 8.17Max area25,000 sqm GIAGround+31.2 m AODMin height+ 43.5 m AOD (3 storey)Max height+ 54.7 m AOD (5 storey + plant)
- 8.18 The building proposed under this current application is considered to accord with these parameters. The proposed ground floor level would be set at +31.740 m AOD and the height of the building, including plant screen would be + 49.360 m AOD.
- 8.19 The recent reserved matters approval in September 2013 under application P/14515/005 approved the detailed design of a five storey 'V' shaped gateway building on this site which would have been occupied for office purposes.
- 8.20 The applicant has marketed the approved five storey 'V' shaped building unsuccessfully for a period of three years. The applicant is therefore considering alternative options that provide the flexibility to respond to current market conditions. The current proposal is considered to constitute a sustainable, practical and deliverable response to current market and economic signals.
- 8.21 Whilst smaller in scale, it is accepted that the proposal would better respond to current market conditions and would assist in improving the attractiveness of the site through a deliverable, high quality landmark building, which would ensure that the site is utilised and this strategic location is enhanced.
- 8.22 Furthermore, it is considered that the proposed development would provide direct and indirect employment opportunities for the local area, during both the construction and end user phases.
- 8.23 The applicant, Slough Trading Estate Limited formerly occupied the site; however they have relocated to their new premises at 258 Bath Road in January 2014. The existing buildings on the site are therefore currently vacant and bringing forward the redevelopment of this site with a building of high quality is considered to be desirable.

- 8.24 It is considered that the proposal would play a key part in the comprehensive regeneration of the Trading Estate, as sought by development plan policies, and also assist in attracting inward investment, creating jobs and offering opportunities for improving skills and training to local people. The principle of the proposal is thus considered acceptable.
- 8.25 In light of recent changes to permitted development rights, a condition is recommended to ensure that the building shall only be used for office purposes in the interests of ensuring that there may be no loss of the defined Existing Business Area to non-employment generating uses in the future.

9.0 Design and Impact on the Street Scene

9.1 The thrust of Policy EN1 of the Adopted Local Plan for Slough and Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy is that the design of proposed development should be of a high standard and should reflect the character and appearance of the surrounding area. Policy EN1 of the Adopted Local Plan for Slough sets out detailed design criteria which development proposals are required to comply with and Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy states the following:

High Quality Design:

All development will:

a) Be of a high quality design that is practical, attractive, safe, accessible and adaptable;

b) Respect its location and surroundings;

c) Provide appropriate public space, amenity space and landscaping as an integral part of the design; and

d) Be in accordance with the Spatial Strategy in terms of its height, scale, massing and architectural style.

- 9.2 The National Planning Policy Framework recognises the indivisibility of good planning and good design. Development proposals should be of a high quality and be inclusive.
- 9.3 The Planning Practice Guidance acknowledges that good quality design is an integral part of sustainable development. The Guidance states:

Achieving good design is about creating places, buildings, or spaces that work well for everyone, look good, last well, and will adapt to the needs of future generations.

Good design responds in a practical and creative way to both the function and identity of a place.

Layout

- 9.4 The applicant submits that the layout of the building has been influenced by a number of factors, including the on-site constraints and opportunities, as well as the character of existing buildings along the Bath Road frontage.
- 9.5 It has been stated that the site layout is designed to maximise the prominent gateway location of the site and is responsive to the geometry of Leigh Road with an angled return on Leigh Road including a triple height glazed pedestrian entrance and canopy feature. Locating

the entrance on the south east elevation will make it visible to visitors. It also provides an opportunity for making a grand architectural gesture towards the junction and enhances the gateway to the Trading Estate.

- 9.6 The Design and Access Statement sets out that the roof line of the proposal along the Bath Road has been studied carefully throughout the design process. The current proposal is positioned on the site so as to not significantly breach the existing building line.
- 9.7 The south western corner of the proposed glazed façade would be inline with the position of the existing fin feature forming the south western corner of the western building. The proposed building is considered to be acceptable in terms of the impact on the Bath Road building line. Furthermore, it would appear that the proposed development would be set back from the building line established by the LRCC2 parameters plan and the reserved matters approval.
- 9.8 Whilst the entrance is built over the main sewer, the scheme has been designed in such a way that access to it is maintained. It is understood that this matter has been agreed with Thames Water prior to the submission of the application. Thames Water have been consulted and no objections have been received.
- 9.9 The proposal maintains car parking and areas of landscaping to the rear and the proposed layout is considered to be acceptable.

Scale

- 9.10 The building is three storeys in height and includes a triple height glazed atrium, which creates a functional and visual link across all floors.
- 9.11 It is considered that the scale of the triple height glazed entrance and canopy feature would provide a striking pedestrian entrance. It is considered that the continuation of the canopy parapet and surfacing within the glazed entrance would appear seamless and architecturally impressive. A freestanding staircase from ground to second floor is proposed which will be both functional and would provide a strong sculptural element.
- 9.12 The building will have a Gross External Area (GEA) of 8,434m2 with a Gross Internal Area (GIA) of 7,746m2. As noted above, the proposed building would accord with the parameters established by the outline planning permission for LRCC2. In this context, the proposal is therefore considered to be of an acceptable scale.
- 9.13 It is also considered that the relationship of the proposed development with a future development on the site of 230 Bath Road, located on the opposite side of Leigh Road would likely be acceptable.
- 9.14 The parameters for 230 Bath Road established by the outline planning permission for LRCC2 were for either an office building of between three storeys and five storeys plus plant (maximum height of +54.7 m AOD); or for a hotel development between two storeys and seven storeys plus plant (maximum height of +59.4 m AOD).
- 9.15 It is considered that the scale of the proposal under consideration would relate well to the likely scale of development on this adjacent plot and that a gateway relationship would be achieved.

Appearance

9.16 The applicant submits that the building represents a functional, aesthetic and sustainable

design solution that incorporates high quality architecture and appropriate materials.

- 9.17 The Design and Access Statement states that proposed materials would be as follows:
 - Vertical fins, parapets and plinths to be clad in panels mounted on a concealed steel frame. Colour to be white;
 - Aluminium Curtain walling system. Colour to be dark grey;
 - Backpainted glass over insulated spandrel panel;
 - Glass to be Guardian Sunguard HP (or similar). Neutral.
- 9.18 Aluminium horizontal louvers coloured dark grey were initially proposed, however amendments have been undertaken to the scheme and these have since been omitted. The vertical emphasis provided by the white fins would remain and this design feature is supported.
- 9.19 The Design and Access Statement provides some design precedents taken from the local area which have been reinterpreted to provide an appropriate response to the local distinctiveness. Consequently, the building form is considered to be well proportioned and responds to the adjacent buildings in terms of height and colour.

Landscaping

- 9.20 A proposed landscaping scheme has been submitted in support of the application.
- 9.21 The Council's Tree Officer has raised no objection to the application. It has been recommend that if planning permission is granted that conditions are applied to require full details of the proposed landscaping and to require detail of tree protection methods which should be in accordance with BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to Design Demolition and Construction and include a plan.
- 9.22 The proposal is considered to comply with Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004 and Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

Sustainability

- 9.23 The Energy Analysis submitted in support of the application states that a BREEAM Pre-Assessment has been undertaken and that the development can achieve a BREEAM rating of 'Very Good'. It has also been stated that there will be considerable building efficiency and fabric improvements. Further information is to be provided with respect to renewable and low carbon technology – the submitted Energy Statement states that photovoltaic's and biomass are to be considered. The revised plans received show the indicative location of photovoltaic's at roof level. The Developer's Guide states that major developments must include renewable or low carbon energy equivalent to 10% of the developments carbon emissions.
- 9.24 Core Policy 8 requires that developments must be designed and constructed in a sustainable manner to help reduce carbon emissions, pollution, flooding and limit depletion of natural resources, etc. Whilst further information will be submitted and considered in relation to sustainability and an update will be provided regarding this on the Committee amendment sheet, it is considered that the development would comply with this policy in terms of BREEAM rating, subject to a planning obligation.

Summary

9.25 In summary, it is considered that the proposed development has been designed to a high quality which responds sympathetically to its context through the careful consideration of the layout, scale, appearance and landscaping treatments. Consequently, the scheme is considered to provide improvements to its surroundings, and the building will create a legible landmark at the gateway to the Trading Estate.

10.0 Parking and Highway Safety

- 10.1 Development plan policies relevant to the assessment of these matters is as follows:
- 10.2 Core Policy 5 of the Core Strategy states that the location, scale and intensity of new employment development must reinforce the Spatial Strategy and Transport Strategy. This includes the application of a parking cap upon new developments unless additional parking is required for local road safety or operational reasons.
- 10.3 Core Policy 7 of the Core Strategy sets out the Planning Authority's approach to the consideration of transport matters. The thrust of this policy is to ensure that new development is sustainable and is located in the most accessible locations, thereby reducing the need to travel.
- 10.4 Policy T2 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough seeks to restrain levels of parking in order to reduce the reliance on the private car through the imposition of parking standards.
- 10.5 Policy T8 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough relates to Cycling Network and Facilities. This policy states that permission will not be granted for proposals which do not include suitable cycle access to and through the site and cycle parking racks and other facilities for cyclists as an integral part of the development.
- 10.6 The applicant has submitted a Transport Statement and Framework Travel Plan in support of their application. The Council's Transport consultant has been consulted.
- 10.7 There will be no overall increase in parking provision as the 223 existing spaces will be retained as part of the proposals. No overall increase in spaces is therefore proposed and the new building with provide parking at 1 space per 38m2, which is still below the 1 space per 40m2 which is the adopted parking standard contained within the Adopted Local Plan for Slough for new B1(a) office development. It is therefore considered that parking provision would be acceptable and compliant with Development Plan policies.
- 10.8 A total of 68 cycle parking spaces will be provided. This level of provision is considered to be acceptable and would accord with Policy T8 of the Adopted Local Plan for Slough. The provision of lockers and shower facilities is welcomed.
- 10.9 The existing basement car park is to be retained and the proposal also involves the upgrading of the existing surface car park access on to Leigh Road and the reconfiguration of this car park. Whilst revisions and clarification has been requested regarding access and layout, it is considered that the proposal is generally acceptable.
- 10.10 The Transport Statement includes a plan showing the proposed accesses to the site in the context of the highway alterations that will be undertaken in the vicinity of the site through the LRCC2 permission.
- 10.11 The northern access to the site from Leigh Road would be stopped up and access to the site would be via the southern access points. Details will therefore be required of the proposed means of access to the basement car park from the surface car park. It is understood from

pre-application discussions that this may be achieved through the construction of a new vehicular ramp adjacent to the western boundary of the site, however details will be required to be submitted for approval.

10.12 Turning to the Travel Plan, it has been commented that this does not currently meet the standard required and must be updated. Should the application be approved, it is recommended that a £6,000 Travel Plan Contribution is sought. Revisions to this document are required.

11.0 <u>Other Issues</u>

11.1 The applicant has submitted a written scheme of investigation for a programme of archaeological evaluation in support of their application. Berkshire Archaeology have been consulted and a response has been received raising no objections to the proposal. It is considered that the proposal would have no adverse impacts on archaeology and would comply with Core Policy 9 of the Core Strategy.

12.0 <u>Heads of Terms</u>

- 12.1 Core Policy 10 of the Core Strategy states that development will only be allowed where there is sufficient existing, planned or committed infrastructure. All new infrastructure must be sustainable. Where existing infrastructure is insufficient to serve the needs of new development, the developer will be required to supply all reasonable and necessary on-site and off-site infrastructure improvements.
- 12.2 The developer has indicated that they are willing to enter into a Section 106 Agreement and a draft Heads of Terms has been submitted as part of the application. Relevant matters are considered to be as follows:
- 12.3 Travel Plan Monitoring fee of £6,000;
 - Mechanism to deduct the floorspace created as result of the development from that approved under the LRCC1 and LRCC2 Outline Planning Permissions (The GIA of the building would count towards the overall floorspace threshold);
 - Enter into Section 278 Agreement/Minor Highways Works Agreement for modifications to the accesses;
 - BREEAM rating of at least 'Very Good'.
- 12.4 Based on the information assessed to date, such obligations would be considered to comply with Regulation 122 of The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 in that the obligations are considered to be:
 - (a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
 - (b) directly related to the development; and
 - (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

The need for relevant obligations will be reviewed in light of any further comments received and any updates will be provided on the Committee Amendments Sheet.

13.0 Process

13.1 In dealing with the application, the Local Planning Authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner. Pre-application advice has been provided and the applicant amended the proposal in light of this advice. The development is considered to be sustainable and in accordance with the requirements of the National Planning Policy

Framework.

14.0 <u>Summary</u>

14.1 Having considered the relevant policies set out below, the comments from consultees received to date and all other relevant material considerations, it is recommended that the application be:

Delegated to Strategic Lead Planning Policy for final determination following consideration of further details/amendments relating to transport and highway matters, finalising of conditions and completion of a Section 106 Agreement.

PART C: RECOMMENDATION

15.0 Recommendation

15.1 Delegate to Strategic Lead Planning Policy for final determination following consideration of further details/amendments relating to transport and highway matters, finalising of conditions and completion of a Section 106 Agreement.

PART D: CONDITIONS

16.0 CONDITIONS:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this permission.

REASON To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions, and to enable the Council to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby approved shall be implemented only in accordance with the following plans and drawings hereby approved by the Local Planning Authority:

Drawing No. Site Location Plan (Drawing PL 000), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Existing Condition: Site Plan (Drawing PL 001), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Existing Condition: Basement Floor Plan (Drawing PL 002), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Existing Condition: Ground Floor Plan (Drawing PL 003), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Site Plan (Drawing PL 010), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Basement Plan (Drawing PL 099), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Ground Floor Plan (Drawing PL 100), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: First Floor Plan (Drawing PL 101), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Second Floor Plan (Drawing PL 102), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Roof Plan (Drawing PL 103 Rev 01), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 17/04/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition Section AA (Drawing PL 200), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition Section BB-CC (Drawing PL 201 Rev 01), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 17/04/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: North East & South West Elevations (Drawing PL 300 Rev 01), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 17/04/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: North West & South East Elevations (Drawing PL 301 Rev 01), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 17/04/2014 Drawing No. Proposed Condition: Detailed Elevation Section Plan (Drawing PL 400 Rev 01), Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 17/04/2014 Drawing No. Landscape Proposals Plan (Drawing ASA-415-DR-001) Dated 14.03.14, Recd On 19/03/2014 Drawing No. Foul and Surface Water Drainage Strategy (Drawing 018975-CA-0-B01-DSP-SE-015), Dated Mar 2014, Recd On 19/03/2014 REASON To ensure that the site is developed in accordance with the submitted application and to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenity

3. Samples of external materials to be used on the development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the scheme

of the area and to comply with the Policies in the Development Plan.

is commenced on site and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

REASON To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development so as not to prejudice the visual amenity of the locality in accordance with Policy EN1 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

4. Samples of external materials to be used in the construction of the access road, pathways and communal areas within the development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the scheme is commenced on site and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

REASON To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development so as not to prejudice the visual amenity of the locality in accordance with Policy EN1 of The Local Adopted Plan for Slough 2004.

5. No development shall commence on site until a detailed landscaping and tree planting scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme should include the trees and shrubs to be retained and/or removed and the type, density, position and planting heights of new trees and shrubs.

The approved scheme shall be carried out no later than the first planting season following completion of the development. Within a five year period following the implementation of the scheme, if any of the new or retained trees or shrubs should die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, then they shall be replaced in the next planting season with another of the same species and size as agreed in the landscaping tree planting scheme by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and accordance with Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

6. No development shall commence until tree protection measures during construction of the development for existing retained trees (as identified on the approved landscaping scheme) in accordance with BS5837:2012 Trees in relation to Design Demolition and Construction have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These measures shall be implemented prior to works beginning on site and shall be provided and maintained during the period of construction works.

REASON To ensure the satisfactory retention of trees to be maintained in the interest of visual amenity and to meet the objectives of Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

7. No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed boundary treatment including position, external appearance, height and materials have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Before the development hereby permitted is occupied, a suitable means of his boundary treatment shall be implemented on site prior to the first occupation of the development and retained at all time on the future.

REASON In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and accordance with Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 41, Class A of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended), no extension or alteration to the office building shall take place without the express permission of the

Local Planning Authority.

REASON In the interests of the amenities of the area in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

9. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 3 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended), the building shall only be used for office purposes falling within Class B1(a) of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (and in any provision equivalent to the Class in any statutory instrument revoking or re-enacting that order) and for no other purpose.

REASON In the interests of ensuring that there is no loss of the defined Existing Business Areas to non-employment generating uses in accordance with Core Policy 5 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

10. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for external site lighting including details of the lighting units, levels of illumination and hours of use. No lighting shall be provided at the site other than in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON In the interests of the amenities of the area and to comply with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 - 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

11. Before the northern access to Leigh Road is stopped up, full details of the means of access to the basement car park from the surface car park (which shall include plans, elevations, sections and swept path analysis) shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. Once approved, the means of access to the basement car park shall be constructed and made available for use before the northern access to Leigh Road is stopped up.

REASON In the interests of providing access to the basement car park in light of future highway alterations in the vicinity of the site in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

12. No development shall be begun until details of the cycle parking provision (including location, housing and cycle stand details) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with these details prior to the occupation of the development and shall be retained at all times in the future for this purpose.

REASON To ensure that there is adequate cycle parking available at the site in accordance with Policy T8 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004, and to meet the objectives of the Slough Integrated Transport Strategy.

13. At least 10% of the energy supply of the development shall be secured from renewable and low carbon energy (as described in the glossary of the National Planning Policy Framework). Details and a timetable of how this is to be achieved, including details of physical works on site, shall be submitted to and approved in writing to the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted. The approved details shall be implemented in accordance with the approved timetable and retained as operational thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local

Planning Authority.

REASON In order to comply with the requirements of Core Policy 8 of the Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document.

14. The development shall not commence until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include measures to:

(a) Minimise, re-use and re-cycle waste, including materials and waste arising from demolition;

- (b) Minimise the pollution potential of unavoidable waste; and
- (c) Dispose of unavoidable waste in an environmentally acceptable manner.

The approved details shall be implemented during the course of building operations and the subsequent use of the building.

REASON In the interests of highway safety and operation in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

15. The development shall not commence until details of refuse storage, refuse collection and recycling facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON To ensure that adequate onsite servicing can take place and in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

16. A Service Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted. The Service Management Plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON To ensure that adequate onsite servicing can take place and in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

17. The development shall not take place until a plan showing the new CCTV locations within the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter no occupation of the development shall take place until details of the new CCTV within the site, if any, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter implemented in accordance with the approved details. This shall include details of:

The specification, transmission and monitoring of the CCTV cameras to be installed;
 The method of connecting the CCTV cameras to the existing SEGRO CCTV Network; and

- The ongoing maintenance of the CCTV cameras.

REASON To reflect the permitted CCTV locations in the Adopted Simplified Planning Zone, November 2004. To ensure the public's safety throughout all stages of the development in accordance with Core Policy 12 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

18. Full details of the surface water collection and conveyance for all hard surfaced areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of the development, excluding any demolition works. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON In the interest of the safety and amenity of both public highway and adjoining properties in accordance with Core Policies 7 and 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

19. Details of loading/unloading and turning areas of demolition vehicles shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before demolition is commenced on site and the works shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

REASON To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the free flow of traffic or conditions of general safety along the neighbouring highway in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

20. No development shal commence until a Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall include details of the loading/unloading and turning area of construction vehicles, wheel wash facilities, arrangements for construction worker parking and a HGV routeing strategy. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON In the interests of highway safety and operation in accordance with Core Policy 7 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

- 21. No development shall begin until details of a scheme (Working Method Statement) to control the environmental effects of demolition and construction work has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:
 - control of noise;

• control of dust (a suitable continuous water supply shall be provided in order to minimise the formation and spread of dust and the perimeter of the site shall be screened to a sufficient height to prevent the spread of dust).

- smell and other effluvia;
- · control of surface water run off;
- site security arrangements including hoardings;
- · proposed method of piling for foundations;
- construction and demolition working hours, and
- when delivery vehicles taking materials are allowed to enter or leave the site.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme or as may otherwise be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON In the interests of the amenities of the area in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006-2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

22. Phase 1 Desk Study

Development works shall not be commenced until a phased risk assessment shall be carried out by a competent person in accordance with Government, Environment Agency and Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) guidance and

approved Codes of practices, including but not limited to, the Environment Agency model procedure for the Management of Land Contamination CLR11 and Contaminated Land Exposure Assessment (CLEA) framework, and CIRIA Contaminated Land Risk Assessment Guide to Good Practice C552. Phase 1 shall incorporate a Desk Study (including a site walkover) to identify all potential sources of contamination at the site, potential receptors and potential pollutant linkages (PPLs) to inform the site preliminary Conceptual Site Model (CSM). The Desk Study shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to development commencement.

REASON To ensure that the site is adequately risk assessed for the proposed development in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

23. Phase 2 Intrusive Investigation Method Statement

Should the findings of the desk study identify the potential for contamination, then the development shall not commence until an Intrusive Investigation Method Statement (IIMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The IIMS shall be designed in accordance with current guidance, standards and approved Codes of Practice including, but not limited to, BS5930, BS10175, CIRIA 665 and BS8576. The IIMS shall include, as a minimum, a position statement on the available and previously completed site investigation information, a rationale for the further site investigation required, including details of locations of such investigations, details of the methodologies, sampling and monitoring proposed.

REASON To ensure that the type, nature and extent of contamination present, and the risks to receptors are adequately characterised, and to inform any remediation strategy proposal in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

24. Phase 3 Site Specific Remediation Strategy

The remediation works shall not commence until a Site Specific Remediation Strategy (SSRS) has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The SSRS shall, as a minimum, contain details of any additional site investigation undertaken with a full review and update of the preliminary Conceptual Site Model (CSM), the precise location of the remediation scheme and/or monitoring proposed, including earth movements, licensing and regulatory liaison, health, safety and environmental controls, and any validation requirements.

REASON To ensure that remediation works are adequately carried out, to safeguard the environment and to ensure that the development is suitable for the proposed use in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

25. Remediation Validation

No development (within or adjacent to any area(s) subject to remedial work) shall be commissioned and/or occupied until a full validation report for the purposes of human health protection has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall include details of the implementation of the remedial strategy and any contingency plan works approved pursuant to the Site Specific Remediation Strategy condition above. In the event that gas and/or vapour protection measures are specified by the remedial strategy, the report shall include written confirmation from a Building Control Regulator that all such measures have been implemented.

REASON To ensure that remedial work is adequately validated and recorded, in the interest of safeguarding public health and in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

26. No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters.

REASON In accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008. Given the industrial history of the development site, there is a potential for contamination to be present. Infiltrating surface water can remobilise contaminants present in shallow soils/made ground that could ultimately enter the underlying groundwater resulting in pollution.

27. Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall only be permitted with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, where it has been demonstrated by the developer that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater.

REASON In accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008. Piling has the potential to create migration pathways for contaminants which could increase the risk to the groundwater in the Major Aquifer.

28. No development, excluding any demolition works, shall take place until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles, assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development and risks to ground water from historical contamination, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.

REASON To prevent the increased risk of flooding and to additional risks to groundwater by considering the risks due to infiltration of surface water grounds where both land and groundwater may be contaminated in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

29. No development, excluding any demolition works, shall commence until a drainage strategy detailing any on and off-site works to the public and private sewerage system together with any phasing arrangements, has been submitted to and approved by, the local planning authority in consultation with the sewerage undertaker. No phase of the development shall be occupied until any associated drainage diversion and/or upgrade works recommended by the strategy has been completed.

REASON To ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to cope with new development and in order to avoid adverse environmental impact upon the community in accordance with Core Policy 8 of The Slough Local Development Framework, Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, Development Plan Document, December 2008.

INFORMATIVES:

10. The applicant is reminded that an Agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country

Planning Act 1990 has been entered into with regards to the application hereby approved.

11. It is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the proposed development does improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area for the reasons given in this notice and it is in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Consultation:

Transport/Highway Safety:

It has been commented that the applicant should be given another opportunity to reflect on the need for a cycle ramp to the building.

It has been commented that this is a key site where commitment to sustainable travel is needed as part of the wider LRCC2 development and expecting cyclists to carry bikes downstairs into a restricted area with doors, one of which opens outwards is unsatisfactory and will lead to damage to bicycles. Wheeled ramps do not work well on steep staircases as proposed. They form a trip hazard to pedestrians and inconvenient in terms of people using the hand rail.

It has also been commented that just because one is provided in Winnersh it does not mean that this a good way of getting cyclists down into the car park far from it. For a largely new building (with brand new occupiers) this is not acceptable, especially given the commitments to providing a high quality facility at pre-app.

The applicant has been asked as to whether changes could be made to address these concerns.

It is considered that any issues regarding the Travel Plan could be resolved.

Thames Water.

No objections have been raised and conditions and informatives are recommended. It has been noted that there are easements and way leaves running to the east of the proposed development. These are Thames Water Assets and assurance will be sought that these will not be affected by the proposed development.

Design and Impact on Street Scene:

Landscaping:

Amendments have been undertaken to the proposed landscaping scheme and a revised plan has been received. It is considered that the proposed amendments are acceptable and compliant with Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy and Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan.

Sustainability:

Further information has been received regarding sustainability matters. The applicant has provided details as to how they consider the proposal would comply with Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy in respect of sustainable design and construction principles. With respect to the generation of electricity from renewables; 10% of the building's energy (for new build area of 4,770m2 only) is to be met by using onsite renewables. It is submitted that the limiting factor to installation will be the ability of the roof to safely bear the load of a proposed array. Further details have also been provided with respect to minimising energy consumption, recycling waste, and incorporating sustainable design and construction.

Having regard to Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy, it is considered that the proposal would be acceptable on balance. Whilst the Developers Guide states that major developments must include renewable or low carbon energy equivalent to 10% of the developments carbon emissions, the applicant is proposing to provide 10% of the building's energy for the new build area only. Whilst it could be argued that the 10% should relate to the total floorspace of the building, the scheme involves the retention of existing fabric. The development is described as being for part-refurbishment and construction and the existing floors of the western building are to be retained. Given that the proposal would provide other sustainability benefits as well as achieving BREEAM rating of 'Very Good', as required, it is not considered that it would be reasonable to raise an objection to the proposal on sustainability grounds having regard to the requirements of Core Policy 8 of the Core Strategy. The wording of Condition 13 is to be amended accordingly.

Parking and Highway Safety:

Further/revised details have been received regarding transport and highway matters. The response received includes the following:

- A revised drawing has been provided showing a reduction in the width of the junction bell-mouth and overrun area;
- The basement car park aisle widths are to remain as existing;
- A drawing has been provided which illustrates an alternative basement access arrangement;
- A revised drawing has been provided showing additional disabled parking spaces and a reconfiguration of the basement area to accommodate new columns that are required for the new building;
- Access to the basement car park will be controlled via the existing sliding gates;
- A revised drawing has been provided which demonstrates that the parking spaces on the access ramp do not obstruct cars entering the basement car park;
- A 'cycle channel' will be provided;
- A revised and updated Travel Plan has been provided;
- Sheffield style cycle stands are to be provided at the east end of the landscape break out area located under a covered, pagoda-type structure.

The Council's Transport consultant has assessed this information and further comments have been received, as summarised above.

The main concern remains with the access arrangements to the cycle store. Whilst the applicant is proposing to provide a cycle channel, this is not considered acceptable. The arrangement of doors is also not considered satisfactory. It has been commented that the applicant should be given another opportunity to reflect on the need for a cycle ramp to the building.

Conditions:

The applicant has commented on the recommended conditions. It has been requested that certain conditions are either omitted or reworded and consideration has been given to these comments, as follows:

Condition number 2 setting out the approved plans has been updated to include the revised plans received;

Conditions 8 and 9 are considered reasonable and necessary. Any proposed alterations, extensions or changes of use would be assessed against development plan policies;

Condition 12 relating to cycles is to remain as a pre-commencement condition. Given the above comments from the Council's Transport consultant regarding the need for a commitment to sustainable travel at this key site, it is considered that this is an appropriate trigger for these details to be provided (the access issues discussed above will be considered prior to formal determination);

Condition 13 relating to sustainability is reworded to make it clear that the 10% requirement relates to the new build area;

Condition 15 relating to refuse is amended to require details to be submitted prior to occupation; Condition number 27 regarding piling has been updated in light of comments received from Thames Water. This condition is considered reasonable and necessary:

Conditions 28 and 29 are considered reasonable and necessary.

Further Information:

The applicant has submitted the attached "Summary Design Note" in support of the application.

NO CHANGE TO RECOMMENDATION



Planning Application Ref: P/00440/008

SUMMARY DESIGN NOTE ON THE REFURBISHMENT AND EXPANSION OF 234 BATH ROAD, SLOUGH.

- 1. SEGRO welcome the Officer's recommendation, which reflects the outcome of detailed preapplication discussions and meetings with Planning and Highways Officers, as well as a public consultation exercise.
- 2. SEGRO have marketed the larger approved scheme for the site for a period of 3 years without success. This consent remains alive. SEGRO have explored alternative options that are more responsive to the current market conditions, meet the needs of future occupiers and will form an important gateway to the Slough Trading Estate.
- 3. The design approach has involved the re-use of the existing floor plates of the western building with some modifications where as the eastern building will be demolished as it is unsuitable and does not meet modern office requirements.
- 4. The key factors influencing the layout of the building include the shape of the site and fact that it is a corner plot, the reuse of the general access locations, the location of the mains sewer running along the western side of Leigh Road, the building line on Bath Road (the proposed building will not extend beyond the existing building line) and provision of amenity space. Scale was also an important consideration in the design response, together with the site's relationship to the opposite side of Leigh Road. In our view there is no need for the two sides of Leigh Road to 'mimic' each other, but rather the opportunity to create two statement buildings, which add to this prominent gateway location. 230 Bath Road is different in shape and this will influence the design response to this site. The two buildings can be complementary to each other.
- 5. The design response is in our view a significant improvement on the first scheme presented to you at the pre-application stage, in December last year. The site layout is designed to maximise the prominent gateway location of the site and is responsive to the geometry of Leigh Road with an angled return to Leigh Road including a triple height glazed pedestrian entrance and canopy feature. We have located the entrance on the south east elevation to make it visible to visitors from Bath Road and Leigh Road. It is an inviting entrance, drawing on existing examples along Bath Road. It also provides an opportunity for making a grand architectural statement towards the junction and would enhance the gateway to the Training Estate.
- 6. The scale of the building can be appreciated when looking at the model and CGI's provided.

- 7. In our view the design is predicated on a strong rationale underpinned by a good understanding of the site's constraints and opportunities, and an appreciation of the character of the surrounding townscape, and need to deliver a high quality, prominent gateway building. This is further explained in the submitted Design and Access Statement.
- 8. In conclusion, the proposals seek to transform and modernise the two existing buildings of disparate design under a unified enclosure. This is a sustainable response to the reuse of this site. The new building has been designed to be highly efficient and sufficiently flexible to accommodate the needs of future occupiers and will form an important gateway to the Slough Trading Estate. Subject to planning permission being given, SEGRO would look to start on site as soon as practicable and construct the office space speculatively, in the knowledge that this building better responds to the market.

Registration Date:	24-Mar-2014	Applic. No: Ward:	P/01766/022 Cippenham Meadows						
Officer:	Mr. Albertini	Applic type: 13 week date:	Major 23 rd June 2014						
Applicant:	Millhouse Group	Millhouse Group							
Agent:	Mr. Ben Willcox, Lewandowski Willcox 130, High Street, Eton, Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 6AR								
Location:	172-184, Bath Road, Slough, Berkshire, SL1 3XE								
Proposal:	DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 3 STOREY BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION OF 6 STOREY MIXED USE HOTEL SCHEME WITH 81 BEDROOMS AND BASEMENT CAR PARK								

Recommendation: Delegate to the Acting Planning Manager



1.0 SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION

Delegate to the acting Planning Manager for completion of a Section 106 agreement.

PART A: BACKGROUND

2.0 <u>Proposal</u>

- This proposal involves demolition of the existing 3 storey vacant office and construction of a part 5 part 6 storey hotel for 81 rooms plus a ground floor restaurant and a café (A3 use class 151 sqm.) both linked to the hotel but with access direct from the street also.
- 2.2 The revised scheme proposes 65 car parking spaces. Most are in a two level basement served by a car lift. The remaining 7 spaces are at ground level on the north side of the site served by a new access to the site off Galvin Road.
- 2.3 The curved frontage of the building wraps around the south west corner of the site facing the Bath Road and Galvin Road. The reception will be on the north side of the building off the entrance area. There will be entrance on the frontage also linked with the café/restaurant area. The restaurant will open out onto a courtyard area on the east side of the site.
- 2.4 The rear of the building includes a deep recess such that most of the rear room windows do not face the existing homes to the east and north. The sixth floor is set back from the main facades.
- 2.5 Trees on the frontage next to Bath Road are not affected by the development. Hedge and small trees are proposed for the east side of the site.
- 2.6 Regarding the appearance of the building a mixture of brick, metal vertical cladding strips and render arranged in a contemporary style are proposed. Brick will be used at ground floor level. The set back top floor will be cladding and other floors cladding with render frames wrapping round the building. Colours suggested are grey brick and grey and white cladding in various shades.

3.0 Application Site

- 3.1 The 0.6 hectare site lies on the south east corner of the trading estate but it is not part of Segro's ownership. It is less than 2 km to the town centre. To the north are garages for Thirkleby Rd flats with a larger data centre building beyond. To the north east and east are 3 storey flats on Thirkleby Rd. On the frontage is the current site access with large trees in a grass verge next to Bath Road. To the west is the wide verge of Galvin Road with large shrubs/small trees on the boundary.
- 3.2 The existing 3 storey office building has been vacant for many years. It sits in the middle of the site with windows on each elevation. Parking is on the frontage and at the rear. The east flank is 15 metres away from the nearest flats. The rear façade is 20 metres from the façade of flats to the north.

4.0 <u>Site History</u>

4.1 Extension and addition of fourth storey for existing office building approved January 2001 but permission has now expired.

Application for 54 flats in a six storey building refused 19 July 2005 (P/1766/19)

Application for 53 flats in a six storey building refused 06 June 2007 (P/1766/20)

Application for 50 flats in six storey building agreed subject to Sec 106 agreement 2008. Agreement not signed. Application treated as withdrawn. (P/1766/21)

5.0 <u>Neighbour Notification</u>

- 5.1 Thirkleby Close 37 54 inclusive, 1 12 Kingsmead House. Bath Road 171, 175, 188
- 5.2 No observations received re initial submission. Residential neighbours notified of revised drawings – any observations received will be reported on the amendment sheet.

6.0 <u>Consultation</u>

6.1 Transport/Traffic /Highways

No objections in principle to revised proposal. Further comments expected regarding revised transport assessment and modified layout. Reduction of 81 to 65 car parking spaces requested and agreed by the applicant – revised drawings expected.

Frontage of site is a highway widening line. Require agreements for access works on Galvin Road highway land and construction of any basement under highway widening area. Request dedication of land for highway widening (bus rapid transit scheme currently proposed).

Travel Plan requested. Financial contribution for travel plan monitoring and change to existing parking controls and possibly extension of Bath Rd cycleway across frontage of site.

6.2 Environmental Protection - Request standard soil quality conditions.

PART B: PLANNING APPRAISAL

7.0 Policy Background

7.1 The site is not allocated for development and has no land use restriction in the Local Plan. The loss of an office in this location is not significant and the Core Strategy provides for offices beyond designated employment areas to be replaced with either residential development or another employment use. The hotel is an employment use. A hotel use will help support trading estate and local businesses. The proposal complies with strategic and land use Core Strategy and Local Plan policies. The Café and restaurant use, if available to visitors not staying at the hotel, will provide a useful small scale facility for this part of the town.

8.0 Design Matters

8.1 The building will be 3 storeys higher and deeper than the existing one. For some flats it will be slightly further away than the existing building. The new building will be a similar size to the building agreed in 2008 for flats but not progressed to planning permission stage. However it will have a slightly different effect on nearby flats than the 2008 agreed scheme which had a different footprint, various step backs and more windows.

- 8.2 The key issue is the affect of the building on nearby residential flats to the east and north east in terms of overlooking, light to habitable rooms and any overbearing effect.
- 8.3 The existing flats are about 10 metres high to eaves level and 13.5 metres to ridge line. The new building will be 16.5 metres high (to the fifth storey) and 18.5 metres high to sixth storey which is set back 3 metres. The five storey element at its closest point to west facing facades of the adjacent 6 flats immediately to the east varies between 15.4 metres and 19.5 metres. For 3 flats to the south east the view from their side windows will be partially obscured by the corner of the new building 14 metres away. The flats to the north will be 27 metres away although slightly closer if measured at 45 degrees for other flats.
- 8.4 The originally submitted scheme would have created some overlooking problems but the revised scheme is acceptable. The arrangement of hotel room windows in the east side and rear of the building has been changed and the few that remain are distant enough from existing homes not to be a problem 26 metres at an oblique angle from windows of 3 flats. Corridor windows can be obscure glazed.
- 8.5 Some flats will see less sky than now but the overall effect on light is unlikely to be so great as to be a significant problem in planning terms. A light study is expected prior to the Planning Committee meeting and an update on this matter will be on the meeting amendment sheet.
- 8.6 As the building will be quite close to habitable room windows and higher than the existing building it will appear quite overbearing when seen from those windows. This would not be an issue in a town centre location. It is also not an unusual situation in some parts of the town where there are tower blocks or other large buildings. The previously agreed scheme of 2008 had a similar effect on many of the flats. In addition it had a greater degree of overlooking than the current proposal. It is also unlikely that the a viable redevelopment can take place without a substantial increase in size.
- 8.7 Bearing in mind the size of the 2008 proposal, which was considered acceptable in terms of relationship to existing homes, and the benefits of redeveloping the long vacant site the height of the building in relation to nearby homes is considered acceptable.
- 8.8 The detail of the eastern edge boundary treatment and planting will be important to help soften the appearance of the building at the ground floor level. These can be controlled by condition.
- 8.9 The appearance of the building and materials to be used are acceptable. It will tie in with the contemporary but varied architecture of commercial buildings on the Bath Road. It will contrast with the domestic brick and tile appearance of adjacent homes however this site is the edge of the trading estate area.
- 8.10 Because Bath Road buildings west of the site are set back the site is quite prominent in the view from the west along the A4. Consequently the new building will provide a pleasant landmark block at the end of this view to improve the appearance of the area.
- 8.11 Overall the proposal complies with Core Strategy policy 8, sustainability and environment and 9 natural and built environment plus Local Plan policy EN1 and EN3 design and landscape.

9.0 Access and Transport Matters

- 9.1 The new access off Galvin Road is acceptable. It will involve the loss of some shrubs.
- 9.2 The lift access to the basement rather than a ramp is unusual but it saves space. A minor

adjustment is needed to ensure cars do not reverse out of lifts at ground level into the hotel entrance area for safety reasons.

- 9.3 Car parking is sufficient at 1 space per room as in the second revision. However this is quite generous for the type and location of hotel and 65 spaces have been suggested and agreed by the owner. A smaller number is preferred to limit the traffic generated and encourage use of non-car modes of travel. 81 spaces would generate more traffic than the previous office use. Hotel occupancy is rarely 100% and the site is well served by public transport. Cycle storage is proposed but a minor alteration has been requested.
- 9.4 The frontage of the site is within a highway widening line. The Bath Road service road was once to be extended east many years ago. However the current highway scheme is to use the land for a bus rapid transit scheme. Consequently the frontage cannot be developed or used for car parking and the Council will need the land to be dedicated to the Highway Authority when required. The second level basement, if it extends under the widening line, will need to be approve in terms of details of its construction.
- 9.5 The hotel will generate more traffic than the previous office use so it will be important to encourage use of non care modes of travel. A travel plan will be required. If 65 parking spaces are agreed no financial contribution to mitigate the effect of extra traffic on the network is needed. The precise package is still under discussion as a result of a revised transport assessment and an update will be given at the Committee meeting.
- 9.6 Subject to review of the revised transport assessment the proposal complies with Core Strategy policy 7 Transport.

10.0 Section 106 Matters

10.1 For the development to be acceptable a Section 106 Planning Obligation is needed for the following :

Dedication of land for highway widening. Approval of construction of basement under widening land Signing of Sec 278 highway agreement re access. Financial contribution towards changing parking controls. Financial contribution towards traffic impact mitigation (dependent upon review of transport assessment and car park spaces) including cycleway extension on frontage. Implementation of a Travel Plan Pay cost of Travel Plan monitoring Sustainable development

The above may be adjusted pending review of the revised transport assessment.

PART C: RECOMMENDATION

11.0 Recommendation

- 11.1 Delegate a decision to the acting Planning Manager :
 - for the signing of a satisfactory Section 106 planning obligation
 - to agree revised drawings requested

- to consider any further observations from neighbours / consultees.
- to agree any minor amendments to the planning application, draft conditions and Section 106 planning obligation matters.

12 PART D: LIST OF CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this permission.

REASON To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions, and to enable the Council to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. Samples of materials

Details of external materials (and samples of bricks and cladding) to be used on the development hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the scheme is commenced on site and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

REASON To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development so as not to prejudice the visual amenity of the locality in accordance with Policy EN1 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

3. Bin Stores

The bin stores shown on the approved drawings shall be provided prior to the occupation of the development.

REASON In the interest of public health and visual amenity of the area.

4. Cycle parking

No development shall be begun until details of the cycle parking provision (cycle stand details) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with these details prior to the occupation of the development and shall be retained at all times in the future for this purpose.

REASON To ensure that there is adequate cycle parking available at the site in accordance with Policy T8 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004, and to meet the objectives of the Slough Integrated Transport Strategy.

5. Boundary treatment

No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed boundary treatment including position, external appearance, height and materials have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The boundary treatment shall be implemented on site in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development and retained at all time on the future.

REASON In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and accordance with Policy

EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

6. Landscaping Scheme

No development shall commence on site until a detailed landscaping and tree planting scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme should include the trees and shrubs to be retained and/or removed and the type, density, position and planting heights of new trees and shrubs.

The approved scheme shall be carried out no later than the first planting season following completion of the development. Within a five year period following the implementation of the scheme, if any of the new or retained trees or shrubs should die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, then they shall be replaced in the next planting season with another of the same species and size as agreed in the landscaping tree planting scheme by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and accordance with Policy EN3 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

7. Tree protection

No development shall commence until the tree protection measures in the Aboricultural and Planning Integration Report 3rd March 2014 submited with the application have been implemented on site. No hardstanding within the tree protection zone shall be removed until a method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Any removal of hardstanding within the tree protection zone shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The approved tree protection measures shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details during the period of construction works.

REASON To ensure the satisfactory retention of trees to be maintained in the interest of visual amenity and to meet the objectives of Policy EN4 of The Adopted Local Plan for Slough 2004.

8. Obscure Glazing

The building shall not be occupied until obscure glazing has been installed in corridor windows in the east elevation of the building at first floor level and above. Obscure glazing shall shall been maintained thereafter.

REASON In the interest of the living conditions of residents with west facing windows in flats in Kingsmead House to the east of the development.

9. Surface Water Drainage

The development shall not begin until details of on site surface water drainage works have been submitted to and approved in writing by The Local Planning Authority. No works which result in the discharge of ground or surface water from the site shall be commenced until the off-site drainage works detailed in the approved scheme have been completed

REASON In the interest of prevention of flooding in the area or downstream in accordance with The Core Strategy 2006 - 2026 policy 8.

10. Soil Contamination

To be completed

11. Access

The building shall not be occupied until the access has been completed including associated works within the public highway of Galvin Road.

REASON In the interest of the free flow of traffic and conditions of general safety on the adjoining highway.

MEMBERS' ATTENDANCE RECORD 2014/15 PLANNING COMMITTEE

COUNCILLOR	19/06/14	24/07/14	03/09/14	16/10/14	27/11/14	08/01/15	17/02/15	01/04/15	29/04/15
Ajaib	Р	Р							
Bains	Р	Р							
Dar	Р	Р							
M. Holledge	Р	Р							
Plenty	Р	Р							
P Rasib o	Р	Р							
ອງ Sidhu	Р	P*							
Smith	Р	Р							
Swindlehurst	Р	P*							

P = Present for whole meeting

P* = Present for part of meeting

Ap = Apologies given

Ab = Absent, no apologies given

This page is intentionally left blank